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Who we are

Motability Operations is the operator of the
Motability Car Scheme and, more recently,
the Powered Wheelchair and Scooter
Scherme The Motability Scheme enables
disabled people to exchange either

therr Higher Rate Mobility Component of
Disability Living Allowance or their War
Pensioners’ Mobility Supplement to obtain
a new car, powered wheelchair or scooter

As a not-for-profit plc, we re-invest any
surpluses back into the business for the
benefit of our customers

www.motabilityoperations.co.uk

At Motability Operations we atim ta provide customers with worry-free mobility enabling them to lead an independent life




Our prime purpose

We have developed a clear strategic agenda
designed to satisfy our prime purpose of
providing our customers with independence
and mobility by offering a wide choice of
vehicles at affordable prices.

We aim to deliver first-class customer service,
and believe that understanding how disability
affects our customers’ needs is critical in
meeting this objective. Ensuning the long-term
sustainability of our business is essential for
the delivery of these objectives.

See how we achieved all of our goals through
our strategy in action and performance case
studies featured on the right.
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Directors’ report

Chairman’s statement

Motability Operations has
delivered another year of
excellent performance

The end of our planning year sees us emerge
with a robust business, satisfied customers,
and a strong culture

Neil Johnson, Charman

This reflects our determination to deliver

excellence and first rate service in every area
of our business, including the achtevement of

record levels of customer satisfachon

Success 1s measured through customer
satisfaction, but also through renewals and
advocacy The year has seen us maintain
a 92% renewal rate, and 97% of customers
would now recommend the Scheme
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Buring the year, a number of inttiatives helped enhance
our customers’ expenence when contacting call centres
A simitar focus on raising the quality of respanse to
dealers’ calls has Iifted performance in this critical area
Qur support for customers through digital channels also
moved forward with the launch of our new and improved
website motability co uk

in addition, custorners reported improved satisfaction
with their expenence and relationships with our dealers,
buoyed by a new programme of dealership training

This year we also implemented a number of changes
designed to help safeguard the Scheme from abuse,
and particularly to help ensure that Motability cars are
primarily used for the benefit of the disabled customer
New guidelines for dnvers and a streamlined price list
were introduced in jonuary Customers identified os
having exceptional arcumnstances continue to be
assessed inline with their disability needs

Qur vehicle sales arm reached a new milestone, with
64% of cars sold wia our online sales channel mfldirect
This achievement in vehicle remarketing helped deliver
a strong finanaiel performance for the wider business

Acting with integrity and upholding the highest stendards
of corporate governance continued to form an essential
component of our business strategy

We aim to follow best practice in all gspects of governance
ncluding the way the Board and key commuttees are
structured and opercte We have formally evaluated the
effectiveness of the committees and the outcome has
been very positive

As chair of the Nomination Committee, I place significant
impertance on enabling the development of employees,
on identifying talent and ensuring succession plans are In
place for key roles in the business

Looking forward, we continue to monitor the progress
of the Government’s Welfare Reform Act We remain
confident that we can address any changes as they
emerge, while maintaining our focus on censistent
quality of service to our customers We will continue
to strive to improve the efficiency and professionalism
of the business, including sgme major investments in
new and improved IT systems

We are currently in a strong financial position and can
face the future with confidence The Motability family

1s a team involving both the Motability (the Chanty) and
Motability Operations I'd like to take this oppertunity
particutarly ta thank Lord Sterling and the Governors

of Motability for their support We will continue to work
closely together in this partnership

Maotability Operations’ successful year has been achieved
through the continuing efforts of Mike Betts, the Executive
team, and cll our employees, whose steady commitment
and passion for the business’s objectives continue to
deliver outstanding results

Cur track recard demenstrates thot we have the people,
the determinatior, and the culture to handle whatever
challenges the next year brings

)/

Neil Johnson OBE
Chairman




Motability Operations provides customers with the freedom to enjoy o full and active life

www motabilityeperations co uk
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Directors’ report

Our business model

We operate a unique business model,
working with Motability, stakeholders
and partner suppliers, for the benefit
of our customers

As operators of the ‘Motability Scheme’, secured through
a contract with Motability, we receive customers’ mability
allowances assigned directly from the Department for
Work and Pensions (DWP) This revenue stream, which

1s received directly from Government, 1s therefore with
minimal credit nisk As operators of the Scheme, we seek
to leverage economies of scale and to tightly manage our
cost base It s by running an efficient operation that we
are able to consistently deliver a highly affordable and
competitive proposition for our customers

To access a vehicle, powered wheelchair or scooter on
the Motability Scheme you must receive the qualifying
Government ollowance Motability plays no role in
deciding who 1s eligible for this allowance The 1 9 million
people who are currently in receipt of this allowance
could seek to obtain one of these products from
Motability Operations At present, around 33% of this
potentiol customer base participates in the Scheme

In cheosing to take a vehicle, powered wheelchair or
scocter on the Scheme, customers assign their mobility
allowance te Motability Operations 1n return, we provide
worry-free mobility including full insurance, maintenance
and servicing, including {as applicable) tax, tyre end
windscreen replacement, breakdown assistance and
60,000 rmiles mileage ollowance over three years

We aim to offer customers a comprehensive and
affordable preduct range Currently, 34 vehicle
manufacturers (representing 96% brand availlability}
and 16 powered wheelcharr and scooter manufacturers
are represented on the Scheme

Mobility allowance

There are currently over 19 million recipients of quaolifying
‘mobility’ allowances To access the Scheme, an indmidual
must receive either the Higher Rate Mobility Compenent
of the Disability Living Allowance {administered by the
Department for Work and Penstons (DWP), in Northern
Ireland this 1s cdministered by the Social Security Agency
and in the Isle of Man by the Department of Health

and 5Social Security) or the War Pensioners’ Mobility
Supplement (which 1s administered by the Service
Personnel and Veterans’ Agency (SPVA)) Receipt of a
qualifying altowance is the sole eligibility criterion for
people wishing to access the Scheme Through its
relationship with Motability, the DWP arranges for the
allowance to be paid directly to us on behalf of those
people who chocse to use the Scheme

Motability Operations

As the UK’s largest car leasing company, we have

35 years’ expenence In the industry and have supplied
over three mitlion vehicles since the Motability Scheme
waos launched

Dunng 2010, our remit was expanded to include delivery
of the Powered Wheelcharr and Scooter (PWS) Scheme
on behalf of Motability From 1 July 2010, we becarne
responsible for all new leases written on the Scheme
From 1 October 2010, following the acquisition of

How we operate

Motability Charity directs
and oversees the Scheme

Motability 1s a nationol charity, set upin
1977, to assist disabled people with their
mobility needs The Charity’s prime
purpose Is to ensure that those disabled
people who want to use their mobility
allowance to obtain a vehicle, scooter or
powered wheelchair on the Motability
Scheme always receive the best possible
service and vatue for money

At Motability Operations, our relationship
with Motability 1s governed by the
Scheme Agreement, which sets out the
Chanty's role of directing and overseeing
the Scheme Motability ond Motability
Operations are constitutionatly and
operationally separate entities

Mobilty allowance

Government decides who should
receive mobility allowances
Customers may choose to assign their
mobility allowance to obtain a vehicle,
powered wheelchair or scooter

Motability Operations

Manages the Motabibty Car,
Powered Wheelcharr and Scooter Scheme

Customers

Customers have access toa
wide range of products that
meet their specific needs

4  Motability Operations Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012




Route2mobility (R2m) - the previous service provider -
Motability Operations assumed responsibility for the
leases of existing PWS customers This step consotidated
the delivery of the PWS Scheme under one provider Our
approach to operating the PWS Scheme 1s wholly aligned
with that of the Car S¢cheme proposition

Our abjective 1s to offer affordcble, worry-free maobility to
those with qualifying allowances Through the Motability
Scheme, potential customers can choose to divert the
allowance into teasing or the hire purchose of a new car,
powered wheelchair or scooter We aim to provide sustained
value and choice, combined with first-class custormer
service All companies within Motability Operations Group plc
operate to serve this common purpose

Total customer numbers have increased steadily over
recent years, with over 624,000 customers currently
choosing to access the Scheme, made up of over 613,000
Car Scheme customers and over 11,000 PWS Scheme
customers We bought over 222,000 new cars and re-sold
191,000 into the used car marketplace during the financal
year ended September 2012

Through our strong financial posibion we are well equrpped
to deliver a stable customer proposition This strength has
been built on our prudent reserves ond risk moncgement
methodology, our dversified fleet portfolio, our excellent
business culture and best-practice governance it s as

a result of these strengths that we are able to provide

our customers with sustained offordability throughout

the economic cycle As anot-for-profit ple, we reinvest
any surpluses back into the business for the benefit of

our custormers

At Motability Operations, we provide:

* Worry-free mobility through g Contract Hire product including
(os appropriate) insurance, maintenance end servicing, tyre and
windscreen replacement, breakdown assistance and a 60,000 mile
mileage ollowance over three years

+ Excellent brand choice with 34 manufacturers represented on the
Car Scheme, and all of the major scooter and powered wheelchar
providers represented

+ Over 200 cars on the price bist that are evaileble by using the
mobility cllowance alone, with no ‘advance poyment'

+ A full range of adaptations and wheelchair accessible vehicles

To achieve this we:
* Manage and develop relationships with key manufacturers

+ Work in partnership with over 4,800 car declers and 178 mability
outlets to provide excellent customer service

Proactively manage suppliers to ensure an excellent and sustained
customer experience on very offordable terms

Provide telephone support to our customers through our best-
practice call centre, supported by a fully interactive web-based
guery tool

« Ensure thot our workforce of over 800 people across our two sites
Iin tondon and Bristol remains engaged and motivated

Funding

Funding from the financial market

Delivering the Scheme

Cars, Powered Wheelchairs and Scooters
are delivered through partnerships with
manufacturers and dealers

Suppliers

After the three-year lease penod,
vehicles are returned to Motability
Operations Over 90% of customers
choose to renew therr lease

End of lease Remarketing

Used cars are resold into the used car
market through our market-leading
online channel “mifldirect” and our

national auction programme

Provide servicing, breakdown assistance,
insurance, and tyre & windscreen replacement

www motabilityoperations couk &



Directors’ report

Chief Executive’s review

Motability Operations
delivers a simple
proposition - worry free,
affordable mobility for
disabled people

Our customers are provided with a unique
leasing arrangement, bundling car or
wheelcharr, iInsurance, servicing and
maintenance into one seamless package

Mike Betts, Chief Executive

This 1s now a service we successfully provide

to more than 624,000 customers Operating

on this scale requires the close co-operation of
many individuals, internal and external, who
demonstrate something special - a distinctive
passion for delivening excellence for our customers

6 Motebility Cperations Group plc Annuel Report and Accounts 2012

Successful performance

I om delighted thot we are again able to report a highly
successful set of results, which have seen us meeting or
surpassing all ur targets

As well as maintaining our record 98% level of custormner

satisfoction, we have delivered o strong financial outturn,
ensuring the business 15 1n a robust position to withstand
any future shock

Through the year, we met all our objectives for
affordability, consistently prowiding a choice of more
than 300 cars in exchange for the Higher Rate Disability
Allowance olone

In January, we streamiined our price bist to focus closely on
those cars chosen by 95% of our customers (generclly priced
below £2,000 advance payment, and with a retall value of
under £25,000} Although this meant lower avalability of
some premium margues, our choices, provided by 34
manufacturers, included S0 automatics, as well as 120
adaptations avallable at no extra cost We provided a wide
range of green and fuel efficient choices, and alarge
selection of affordoble wheelcharr accessible vehicles

A number of changes were made this year, designed to
help protect the Scherme fram mususe, and safeguard its
reputation In particular, it was important to increase
familianity with Scheme rules, ond tighten guidelines, to
ensure thot Matability cars are used for the benefit of the
disabled customer

The changes included some restnctions on named drivers,
who should generally live within five miles of the disabled
customer, and reduced the selection of cars availeble to
younger drivers Exceptions are considered to address
porticulor disability needs We also introduced a statement
to help customers understand ther responsibilities

A number of achievernents helped deliver our custormer
satisfaction level, including consistent senvice from our
contoct centre Over B0% of calls are answered In less than
20 seconds, and we resolved more than 90% of quenes at
first pont of contact We also improved cur customer
communicatens ond website, creating a more welcoming
impact, and more than doubling the nformation available

To help customers in therr car choices we also extended
the range of adapted test drives available at our One Big
Doy events in the summer Despite the disoppointing
weather, more than 8,000 people attended, taking more
than 1,170 test drives Again, the wisitor feedback was
very positive

The dealer experience is critical for our customers, and

we also enhanced dedler training this year This included
capacity for online traning to augment ctassroom sessions
With this support, customer satisfoction with dealer
experiences such as delivery and servicing increased

More than 97% of Motability customers are happy to
recormmend the Scheme to a frend, and we continue
to see a renewal rate above 92% for those customers
reaching the end of their three-year lease

Our Powered Wheelchair and Scoeter Scheme reached
11,000 customers Dunng the year, customer satisfaction
for these customers rose to 94% Work I1s underway to
review our proposition for this iImportant customer group
to ensure they experience first class value and service




We offer customers a wide range of choice to meet ther individual disability needs

We see our business culture os the bedrock for excellent
customer service, and this year 93% of employees
participated in our MyView survey This independent
survey which tracks Motability Operctions against other
high performing organisations saw us move forward in
every category, with particularly hugh scores recorded for
employee engagement and customer focus

Financial sustainability

We have maintained stable pricing, working closely with
manufacturers to provide a wide choice and balanced
portfolio Our calculction of residual values was
enhanced with the implementation of a new forecasting
methodology We continued to drive improvements in
used vehicle sale revenues with more than 64% of cars
soid online - a record high

Through the year we tmproved our structural iquidity
and obtained two new bonds, £300m Sterling and
£350m Euros Our financial strength has improved

with our retained reserves increasing, underlining our
confidence in the Scheme’s long-term financial viability

We have begun a programme of investment, to ensure
our IT systems and prermises are capable of supporting
our business into the long term Our investment will also
ensure we minimise our iImpact on the environment

The buildings will be class leading for accessibility,
capable of hetping us with our ambition to employ

more disabled pecple

Careful management of sk and a strong culture of
governance ond contro! helped us moke sure that
financial and eperational risks were appropnately
managed through the year

Highlights

9 300 >92
98% > >92%
Overall customer Vehicle models at 'nil Renewal rate at the
satisfachon with advance payment’ end of the lease
the Scheme {target 1s 200)
Looking ahead

The next year brings o raft of challenges including disabifity
benefit changes From 2013, the OWP will start toimplement,
the move from Disability Living Allowance to Personal
Independence Payment Inevitably there will be some who
fall to quolify for the new benefit, and are consequently no
longer eligible for the Scherne, we also expect new recipients
to have access to Motability for the first time

We are currently working clasely with our colleagues at
Motability to plan the appropriate levels of support as
people go through this transition

Given the continued poor economic outlook and advent of
henefit reform there will be difficult times ahead, but I am
confident we have all the skills and experience tc manage
whatever the year brings us It has been ¢ successful year,
and I'd like to thank everyone who has playaed their part in
the business success

=

Mike Betts
Chuef Executive

www motabilityoperations co uk
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Directors’ report

Strategy in action and performance

Our prime purpose

We have developed a clear strateqic
agenda designed to satisfy our prime
purpose of providing our customers with
independence and mobility by offering
a wide choice of vehicles at offordable
prices We aim to deliver first-class
customer service, and believe that
understanding how disability affects our
customers’ needs 1s critical iIn meeting
this objective Ensuring the long-term
sustainability of our business Is essential
for the delivery of these objectives

Our strategy is built around our customers — we aim to deliver excellent service and an affordable and consistent proposition

8 Motability Operations Group plec Annual Report and Accounts 2012




Our strategy

To deliver these ambitions, we have defined four strategic
‘piliars’ These set out a clear framework within which we align
our business objectives, performance targets and business
planning Our people, positioning principles, culture and values
form the bedrock to delivery of these objectives

Qur values

A

Our values are central to delivering and meeting the needs and
expectations of our customers We embrace diversity, which
enables us to have a wide varety of approaches and perspectives,
enhancing performance and creating value for customers We am
to be confident In meeting our customers’ needs

People and principles

Our people are fundamentat to our success
and we are committed to recruiting and
retaining on engaged and motivated
workforce We have created an excellent
working environment, and promote a positive
business culture aligned to our core values and
principles We seek to develop our people and
reward and recognise excellent performence

See page 23

Performance

We track performance through a range of
corporate Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
These XPls are defined in the context of the
four strategic *pillars’, thereby ensuring that
activity across the business s aligned with
these strategic objectives

See pages 10-17

Risk management

Through our comprehensive risk
management processes we (dentify

and assess the risks thot we foce Having
understood the nature of these risks,

we ensure that we have the appropnate
mitigants in place to reduce these exposures

See pages 24-26

www motabitityoperations couk @




Directors’ report

Build our customer
and disabllity expertise

Not only does my Motability
car give me my independence
back, but I have the peace

of mind that no matter what
happens there is always
someone at the end of the
telephone who is trained

and experienced to calm my
nerves. Motability has the
customer in mind all the time.

Customer looking at a Wheelchair Accessible Vehicle at a ‘One Big Day’ event

]0 Motability Gperations Group plc Annucl Report end Accounts 2012




Strategy

Build our customer and disability expertise

We maintain consistently excellent levels of customer service throughout
the leasing proposition, and demonstrate disability expertise in our
approach to our custorners and in our role as an employer

Goals

Understanding our customers is critical to our success By listening and
responding to therr feedback, we are able to adapt our proposition and
focus our resources on their needs Our success 1s dependent on our ability
to deliver a Scheme that meets our customers’ requirements and provides
excellent service Development of our disability expertise 1s fundamental
to our success inunderstanding our customers and the delivery of our
customer service aspirations

Objectives

Deliver best practice customer service through our calt centre

Ensure that the standard of services deployed through our key suppliers
IS commensurate with our internal targets

» Build our adaptation and conversion expertise to ensure that customers
have a seamless experience and that we are recognised for the
excellence of our ‘one-stop-shop’ service

+ Provide our customers with the information and tools they need to
select a suitable car from the wide range available

Provide information to support decision-making to meet customers’
mobility needs

« Work with disability organisattons for guidance and support

KPls

Overall custorner
sahsfaction (%) 9 8 %

We deliver by listening to our customers and
ensuring that we meet therr requirements

Calls answered
within 20 seconds (%) 84%

We have successfully met our target of
answering 80% of calls within 20 seconds for
60 consecutive months The removal of our
Interactive Vaice Recognition in 2010 rmeans
that customers quickly reach a recl person

Roadside assistance 4'| 5
average response time .~ Min

Mobility 15 0 prionty to our customers - in the
event of a breakdown our customers recerve
priority assistance, and with on average
response time of 41 5 minutes, customers
are quickly ottended to and are mobile again

www motobilityoperations couk |



Directors’ report

Provide value and choice

Now I’'m no longer able to drive, I have
decided to lease a scooter. There are
plenty of products to choose from and
the Motability package saves me money
as everything is included. It seems like
there is something for everyone, no
matter what their needs are.

Customer discussing the different scooters available through the Motability Powered Wheelchair and Scooter Scheme

]2 Motability Operations Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012




Strategy

Provide value and choice

We provide a wide range of vehicles to our customers at competitive
and offordable prices

Goals

We believe that customers should be able to choose from a wide selection
of vehicles Within this offering we are committed to providing a range of
affordable models which are suitable for our customers' needs

To this end we seek to leverage our purchasing power and ensure that we
manage our cost base on cormmercial terms — the am being to provide
value without compromising choice or quality

Objectives

- Maintain a range of at least 200 cars at ‘nil advance payment’
» Provide a wide selection of vehicle models and brands

« Ensure that our residual value-setting and forecasting 1s the best
In the industry

= Provide stability in pricing and choice throughout the economic cycle

+ Retain our market leadership for vehicle remarketing

KPls

Affordable choice > 200

We aim to maintain the availabibity of at
least 200 cars that are funded solely by

the assignment of the customer's disability
ollowance During the year we exceeded this
target with over 340 models at any one time

Relative affordability o
- % cheaper than alternative 43 A)

We benchmark ourselves using commercial
contract hire quotations These are usually
unavailable to the general public and are likely
to be tess expensive than persenal contract
purchase quotations Qur economies of scale,
eperational efficencies and a VAT concession
deliver the majority of this differential

Volume of vehicles sold k
online afthe end of lease >] 20

Selling via our online sales channel, ‘mfldirect’,
provides an effective, low-cost route to market
which facilitates the manogement of our

high volume of disposals, and also ensures

a competitive sales environment through
which we seek to maximise our net return

www motabilityoperations co uk ]3



Directors’ report

Improve reach
and awareness

My wife and I recently attended a
One Big Day event. It was great to see
so many cars in one place and get
sound advice from your staff. It was
interesting talking to other disabled
people in my position and my family
also enjoyed the day immensely.

Prospective customer looking at the different types of adaptations available to help make travelling easier
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Strategy

Improve reach and awareness

We seek to create improved awareness and understanding of the Scheme
proposition within our potential market In doing so we attract new
customers to the Scheme

Goals

Through promoting greater understanding of the Scheme proposition,
we seek to develop better informed prospects who are well positioned to
evaluate Its benefits

Fundamental to this 1s the loyalty and trust of our existing custorners, with
renewal rates being closely inked to our success in deliverning sustained
affordability and excellent custormer service

Objectives

» Raise understanding of Scheme elements end confidence and trust
in the Scheme

-

Maxirmise effectiveness of multimedia channels in increasing
understanding within the eligibte customer base

+ Identfy and where appropriate remove any barriers for
potential custorners

+ Continue to encourage dealers to promote the Scheme in line
with our brand

KPIs

Growth in customers (%) 3.7%

There were 524,397 customers on the
Scheme in September, with new customers
joining the Scheme through improved
awcreness and understanding amongst
recipients, combined with sustained levels
of customer renewals

Customer renewal rate at 92 o
the end of lease A

Whether customers decide to renew therr
business ¢t the end of the lease 1s o key
measure of our success in delivering
affordability, choice and customer service
During the year this was maintained at
above 92%

Customer advocacy 97%

Bxsting customers ore the Scheme’s biggest
advocates, with over 97% saying that they
would recommend the Scheme to others

www motabilityoperations co uk ]5




Directors’ report

Ensure long-term
sustainability

I am very proud to work for an
organisation which has the customer

at the heart of every decision. Motability
Operations’ values are clear and well
communicated and there is great
opportunity for personal training and
development which keeps motivation
levels high.

The employee MyView survey demonstrated that employee engagement levels exceeded those of other high performing compantes
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Strategy

Ensure long-term sustainability

We ensure that our business model, finances, people, reputation and
infrastructure are geared to support the long-term sustainability of
the Scheme

Goals

Long-term sustanability 1s fundamental to the delivery of the other three
strategec pillars From a financial perspective we seek te ensure that we
maintain a robust balance sheet and reserves base capable of tolerating
market volatility, and that we secure longevity of funding on competitive
terms capable of supporting our range of fleet expectations This in turn
allows stability of pncing through the economic cycle We regard the
enhancement of our reputation and the continuation of support we enjoy
acrass our stakeholder groups as pivotal to our sustained success

Objectives

* Maintain a prudent reserves policy that provides financial strength
adequate for us to withstand the impact of potential shock events

- Create opportunities to occess wider sources of competitive funding
We aim to maintain our credit rating, enabling us to secure the most
appropriate funding at competitive rates

+ Continue to nurture effective partnerships with key stakeholders

+ Maintain a forward-looking environmental policy, ensuring
avallability of a range of low-emission vehicles, but balancing our
customers' needs with CO, considerations

» Ensure that our premises and information technelogy infrastructure
are robust and future-proof

« Attract and retain quality people

Revenue (£m) +9.40/o

Customer growth and Index-linked lease
payments are the pnmary drivers of
revenue growth

Credrt raling A‘I"/ AZ

We seek to preserve our retative credit rating
with our robust approach to financial and risk
management and through the flexibility of our
pnaing engine Both ratings were re-affirmed
durnng the year with stable outlocks

Reserves sufficiency raho (%} -l .I 7%

Our Economic Capital model determines

our reserves sufficiency requirement in the
context of our nisk profile We aim to keep this
ratio between 100% and 130% to protect the
longewvity of the Scheme

Employee engagement (%) 95%

We participate 1n an independent annual
review of business culture, where we

have significantly outperformed the
‘high-performing arganisations’ benchmark
Employee engagement 1s 17% higher than the
‘high-perforrming organisations’ benchmark

www motabilityoperations couk 17



Directors’ report

Finance Director’s review

Our overarching financial
objective is to safequard
the long-term sustainability
of the Scheme

The robust nature of our reserves base and
excellent structural iquidity are integral
elerments of a conservative financial
management strategy which underpins
the delivery of this objective

David Gilman, Finance Director

Dunng the year ended September 2012 the Group’s reserves and
bquidity positions were further enhanced - so giving us confidence as
we look to the future With secure financials, we remain well ploced
to continue to deliver sustained offordability and choice to our
customers through the economic cycle

Financial performance

Targets met

Motability Operations Group plc delivered excellent financial
performance in the year ended September 2012 Targets were
exceeded across the full range of financial measures The transfer
to reserves, which are retained in the business for the benefit of our
customers, was £234m (representing a Return on Gross Assets of

4 0%) This result tokes restnicted reserves on the balance sheet to
£1,414m - where they continue to track towerds the centre of the
target economic capital corridor

The Group’s liquidity position was further enhanced dunng the year,
with a closing, un-drawn commutted facility of £1,600m {up fram
£880m in September 2011) Balance Sheet ratios further evidence
the robust nature of the Group's financial poesition, with the ratio of
Total Group Assets Total Net Debt, which is targeted to be no less
than 1251, at 171 11n September 2012 The Group's credit ratings
were reaffirmed as A+/A2, with a stable outlook from Stondord &
Poor’s and Moody's respectively

Total customer numbers continued to increase dunng the year, with
aclosing fleet of 624,397 - representing 3 7% growth year on year
Within this, the closing Car Scheme fleet stood at 613,395, whilst the
Powered Wheelchair & Scooter Scheme customer numbers increased
to 11,002

Revenue increased to £3,126m - up 9 3% year on year This reflects
both an increase in rental income - up 9 6% to £1,747m (o product of
the growth in customer numbers combined with the 5 2% wplift in the
DLA from Apnil 2012), and an increase In vehicle resale proceeds -
with 191,400 sold dunng the year ond proceeds up 8 6% to £1,368m

Cost management

Our operating cost base has continued to be tightly managed dunng
the year through the application of effective cost management
disciplines and via robust supplier management and procurement
processes Whilst rising insurance costs have been a feature of the
wider UK moter market over the past few years, these trends appear
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to have platecued Notwithstonding these pressures, MO has
continued to offer excellent affordatility to customers throughout
the period

Assets and residual values

Operating Lease Assets increased by £336m dunng the year to
£5,313m - reflecting the sncrease in customer numbers and also
an increase In the average volue of vehicles on the Scheme

The Group has 0 demonstrabie track-record of successfully managing
resrdual values through the economic cycle The prudent and
effective management of the asset bose remains a top prionty for
managerment This is achieved through the use of a sophisticated
methodology for determining the residual value of each esset at the
inception of the lease, end alse through a quarterly re-assessment
of this anticipoted residuel value during the Ufe of each lease This
revaluation allows us to be agile and adjust residual values as
oppropnate to reflect market trends This allows us to mitigate the
risk of potentl market volotility

At each financial penod end, this revaluation may result in the need
for occounting adjustments which cre usually made by recalibrating
vehicle depreciation for the period and gver the remaining life of the
lease Our in-house model, which was once again externally validated
dunng the year, has consistently outperformed alternative external
benchmarks, and remains less volotile and typically more conservative
in outlook than other market views At September 2012, the
projected revaluation of the fleet versus the priced pesition reflected
an ontictpated gross gain of £75m, with the alternative market
valuation forecasting a £299m gain - ewidencing our conservative
and prudent positioning

As regards vehicle resate performance, the Group realised significant
gains on disposal during the year ended September 2012, recognising
a £23 4m surplus crystallising on the sale of expinng vehicles {135 6k
vehicles sold) and a further £48 2m in respect of early terminating
leases (55 8k vehicles) This result demonstrates the effectiveness of
our rermarketing operation - with 121,800 (64%) of vehicles sold via
our online chenrel (mfldirect) - and alse a susteined penod of
stobility in the used cor market

Fnancing

Reserves management

The Group's reserves managament approach 1s designed to ensure
the sustainability and stability of the Scheme into the long term The
Group uses its restricted reserves {(which are retained excluswvely for
the benefit of the Scheme - with shareholders having no entitlement
to dividends} to protect the Scheme, and so customers, from potential
maerket or economic shock events

We continue to use an Econormic Capitel model to determine the level
of restricted reserves appropriate to protect the business from such
economic shocks The overarching principle 1s to ensure that we
protect the sustainability of the Scheme through the economic cycle,
and in so doing preserve the relotive stability of prices, offordability
and choice for our customers We have adopted a conservative
approach, with a core underlying assumption that we need sufficient
reserves (Economic Capital) to cover the loss that may arise from alt
but the most extreme nisk events Not only do we perform an internal
annual review of this model to ensure that it adequately reflects the
current nsk profile of the business, but we also, periodically, validate
our approach through an independent externcl review - the most
recent review concluded by corroborating our approach as robust,
proportionate and commensurate with emerging best practice it
identified a well developed programme of stress-testing and the
active engoegement of both the Board and senior management in the
Economic Capital process, and notes that, through the application of
this appropniately conservative methodology, our capital position
benchmarks well to thot of peer financial institutions



Our policy 15 to seek to manage restricted reserves within a target
corridor between 110% and 130% of the calculated Economic Capital
Requirement (ECR) This aims to ensure that the Group’s restricted
reserves are maintained above ‘sufficiency’ - providing greater
tolerance in the event of economic shock, and so less volatility

in lease pricing for the customer

The Group uses a comprehensive range of stress-test scenarios

to validate the Economic Capital approach By running a senes of
hypethetical market specific and wider economic extrerme stress
scenarios, we can objectively scrutinise the efficacy of the Group's
restricted reserves The conclusion of this stress-testing is to affirm
the extremely robust naoture of the Group’s balance sheet, so
providing management with great confidence and cssurance

as we look to the future

The appropriateness and effectiveness of this approach continues

to be clearly demonstrable through the recent and ongoing
macro-economic stresses -~ with the sustained delivery of affordability
and choice to customers throughout During the year restricted
reserves have been successfully managed within the target corndor

- with a closing position representing 117% of ECR

Cash and funding

The Group targets a pelicy to ensure that it has sufficient commtted
financing facilities to provide for at least 12 months’ growth plus 20%
Consistent with this policy, and in order to enhance the diversity,
matunty profile and flexibiity of available focilities, the Group undertook
the following refinancing activities in Jonuary and February 2012

+ Renegotiated its bank faclity (aheod of the June 2013 maturity)
securing an ncreased £1 5 billion five-year revolving credit facility,
and a £500m three-year term loan

« Executed two further bonds under the Group’s A+/A2 rated
European Medium Term Note (EMTN} programme - ¢ £300m
15-year Sterling 1ssue and a €550m 7-year Eurc 1ssue

Corporate structure

The diagram below sets out the current corporate structure

Debt provider

Third party debt financing

Shareholders

Following this refinancing activity the Greup’s aggregate facility stands
at £4 935 bilion At the Balance Sheet date we had drawn £3 3 billen
of this available facility, with the un-drawn balance of £1 6 billion
providing more than sufficient headroom to meet Group palicy

Thase refinancing activities have considerably strengthened the
iquidity of the Group's borrowing Furthermore, given the range of
tenor in our seven bond 1ssues to date, we have also successfully
dversified and extended the matunty profile of our debt At the
balance sheet date the average tenor of our blended borrowing
portfolio was 7 57 years

Treasury policy

Consistent with other aspects of our business activities, we have
adopted a nsk-averse cpproach to treasury management We use
dernvative financial instruments (specifically interest rate swaps) to
reduce cur exposure to interest rate movements thot offect the
funding of existing leased assets The Group also fully hedges the
foreign currency nsk consequent on its two fixed-rate Eurgbonds using
cross-currency interest rate swaps The Group’s overall interest rate
nsk management strategy 1s to convert all new 1ssued foreign
denominated debt into the Group’s functienal currency of sterling

We have established hedge accounting, and, under accounting rules,
derivotive financial instruments are ‘marked to market’ in accordance
with IAS 39 - their value being shown on the face of the Balance
Sheet The fair value of the hedging reserve at 30 September 2012
waos a lability of £10 1m post-tax

Om-g/»m:,_
Dawvid Gilman
finance Director

£+= Bardoys 19 99%
-'g g HSBC 19 99%
£ ¢ Uoyds 3% 98%
= & RBS 19 99%
&< Low Debenture Trust 0 05%

Motability Operations

Motability Operations

Group plc

100% Inter-company financing 100%

Motability Operations Ltd Motabilty Leasing Ltd

100% 100%

Motabilty Hire Purchase Ltd Route2mobilty Ltd
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Directors’ report

Operational review

Overview

As outlined in the ‘Strategy 1n action & performance’ section
{pages 8 -17) the year ended September 2012 saw the Group
continue to deliver high levels of performance across a range
of targets

Customer measures in terms of choice, affordability and satisfaction
were all exceeded throughout the periad, with overall custorner
satisfaction continuing at the all-time high of 98% Renewal

rates continued to track above 92% and total customer numbetrs
increased 3 7% to 624,397

Customer awareness and advocacy of the Scheme

Better awareness and understanding of the key components of the
Motability ‘package’ enoble customers to make informed decisions
on whether to take a vehicle, powered wheelchair or scooter on
the Scheme

Qur actvity aims to increase this understanding through creating
opportunities to talk to potential customers, and through ensunng
that information about the Scheme 1s widely and readily accessible
through a range of communicetion channels

Cne of the most effective media for this communication 1s word
of mouth Our customers are cur greatest ambassadors, and our
research shows that 97% would recommmend the Scheme

In addition, a number of promotional programmes have enhanced
customers’ awareness, including our successful ‘One Big Day’ regional
opendays These events provide an opportunity for both existing and
potential customers to see a range of cars, adaptations, scooters and
wheelchairs, all In ene accessible venue These events continue to
prove to be very popular, with over 8,000 people taking the
opportunity to visit and find out more

A measure of our success in bullding greater understanding 1s the
growth in the number of new customers During the year, 81,572 new
customers chose to take a vehicle, powered wheelchair or scooter on
the Scheme This, combined with continued excellent renewal rates
of 92% among existing customers (a preduct of high customner
satisfaction and sustained affordability), has precipitated continued
growth during the financial year Qur tetal custorner base increased
by 3 7% year-on-year, closing at 624,397 customers on the Scheme

In terms of future customer numbers, from next year the Government
plans to begin to implement a number of changes under the Welfare
Reform Act - specifically, from 2013 the DWP will start to implement
the move from Disability Living Allowance to Personal Independence
Payment Inevitably there will be seme who fail to qualify for the new
benefit, and consequently will be na longer eiigible for the Scheme,
we also expect new recipients to have access to Motability for the

first bme We are currently working closely with our colleagues at
Motability to plan the appropriate levels of support as people go
though this transition

Whilst it 1s onticipated thot the implementation of these changes waill
result in a slow down in growth in the medium term, the business is
well equipped to respond flexibly to all outcomes Our fully scalable
business model, and cur robust financial and operational platform
have enabled us to respond positively to recent expansion - equally
this also positions us well to support customers through the transition
to the Personal Independence Payment

20 Motabiity Operations Group plc Annuol Report and Accounts 2012

Product offenng

During the year, we consistently exceeded our targets on affordability
and the choice of vehicles we offer to our customers on the Scheme
This 1s particularly pleasing given the pressures thot the wider
econemic enviranment has placed on prices

For the Car Scheme, we monitor our performance by referring to
external benchmerks and to the number of cars we offer at ‘ni
advance payment’ This is where the allowance alene is sufficient to
fund ali leasing costs, with no additional contribution required fram
the custormer Where a customer selects a car that does require @
supplement, we receive this as a single payment from the customer
at the start of the lease, s¢ this 1s also without credit nsk This s
called the ‘advance payment’

Qur prices are over 40% cheaper than our external benchmark, which
references the cost of commercial contract hire guotations We set
out to ensure that at least 200 cars are available at nil advance
payment, Including a wide choice of automatics and green options
We have consistently met this target throughout the year We also
supply a range of affordable Wheelchar Accessible Vehicles (WAVS)

Range and cheice are impartont to both our renewing and potential
customers, and we compare the variety of vehicles and brands
available on the Scheme with those avallable in the retail
marketplace Buring the financial year, we offered vehicles from

up to 36 manufacturers with nearly 2,000 vehicle dernvatives on
the price ist Qur approach to the PWS Scheme is also to provide
customers with @ wide and representative choice

We are pleased to offer this continued stability in pricing, which
allows customers to make consistent choices based on needs when
selecting a cor, powered wheelchair or scooter with minimal volatibity
between each price list

As signalled in the 2011 Annuat Report, Motability Operations,
alongside the Chanty, centinues to monitor the Scheme offering to
ensure the proposition remains appropriote, and that it continues to
deliver high value to 1ts customers consistent with the Scheme's core
objectives Dunng 2012 a number of changes were implemented,
which collectively were designed to protect the integrity and
reputation of the core of the Scheme

In January, we streamlined our price list to focus closely on those
cars chosen by 95% of our customers (generally priced below £2,000
advance poyment, and with a retail value of under £25,000)

Other changes were made this year, desigred to help protect the
Scheme from misuse, and safeguard its reputation In particular,
we have taken steps to improve customers’ and Scheme partners’
familiarity with Scheme rules, and have tightened guidelines, to
ensure that Motability cars are used exclusively for the benefit of
the disabled custormer

The changes include some restrictions on named drivers, who should
generally live within five miles of the disabled customer, and reduce
the selection of cars available to younger dnvers Exceptions cre
coensidered to oddress particular disability needs We also introduced
a statement to help customers understand their respensibilities



Customer expenence

We focus on providing customers with a seamless, worry-free
experience Preduct choice ond affordability are significant elements
of this, but meeting our customers’ needs Is about much more

We aim for excellent customer service, which in our case clearly
requires that we take particular steps to meet our customers’
disabllity-related requirements

We have used an independent research ogency ta conduct bi-annual
customer surveys since 2003 These surveys cover all the key
customer contact points on the Scheme The lotest results showed

a record level of overall customer satisfaction of 98%, indicating
excellent levels of customer service The survey centinues to provide
valuable feedback on our customer proposition

Our customer call centre plays a pivotal role in supperting our
customers The excellent customer satisfaction results are in no
small part attributable to the consistent service levels delivered by
our custarner call centre, which has now achieved more thon five
years of answerning 80% of calls within 20 seconds The quality of
customer service gained additional recognition with the awards of
Best Newcorner, Best in Public Services and second best overall in
the Sunday Times Top 50 Call Centre awards

Initiatives designed to support and enhance the customer
experience include

+ Improvements made to customer communications and website,
creating a more welcoming impact, and more than doubling the
information avallable

+ Removal of our Interactive Voice Recognition (IVR), to enable
customers to reach a real person more quickly

« Operating an ontine ‘Lingubot’ called ‘Ask Mo’, which enables
customers to ‘chat’ through therr guenes in ordinary language

+ Avalability of an ontine ‘car search’, which gves customers a user
frendly and readily navigable tool to find the vehicle that best
meets their needs

+ Buiiding flexibility into our systems to ensure that 99 $% of
customers take delivery of their new vehicte on the day they hand
bock therr old one

- Providing o full range of adaptations and conversions os options at
the point of vehicle selection

Excellent service helps drive up renewal rates at the end of lease, and
increases the lkellhood of customers recommending the Scheme to
someone else In fact, more than 97% of customers say they would
recommend Motability to fnends or family

Measurement of our disability expertise 1s inherently mare subjective
and difficult However, we continue to place significant focus on
ensuring that we meet this goal, both as a customer service
organisation and in our role as an employer Examptes include

- The use of a Specialised Mability Team to support the delivery
of the PWS Scheme proposition

- Displaying vehicle accessibility informnation on our website

= The availability of targeted specialist publications including the
Wheelchair Accessible Vehicle (WAV) Guide

« The Car Price Guide includes images of cars with accessibility
considerations, an ‘automatics’ column and iImages
to help customers visualise the types of cars avalable

Our supplers

By developing strategic relationships with all leading car
manufacturers, we have achieved 96% brand availability based

on market share, with 34 manufacturers currently on the Scheme
This now provides our customers with access t¢ over 4,100 vehicle
derivatives, delivered through a network of over 4,800 cor dealerships
During the year we accounted for over 11 5% of UK car registrations

As a consequence we represent an increasingly important route to
market for the manufacturers We regard our partnerstup with them
as extremely valuoble to the Scheme

While we take responsibility for the overall customer expenence,
Motability specialists employed by the car and PWS dealerships
conduct the primary face-to-face relctionship with the customer
We introduced the Motability Dealer Partnership (MDP) programme
In 2004 to ensure that customers receve a consistently high level
of service In the car dealerships This 1s designed to influence deater
behaviour and performance in every key element of the leasing
process (supply, service and after sales) with o particulor emphasis
on customer service The MDP programme has, through targeted
investrnent, delivered improvements that have led to a better
customer expernence at car dealerships

Throughout the year, declers continued to work closely with us to
improve awareness and understanding of the Scheme, and provide
a warm welcome for Motability customers

Alongside dealers, a number of other key partners deliver services to
our customers These include insurance, roadside assistance and tyre
replacement companies, which have to re-tender systematically for
the contracts to provide these services This process helps us leverage
our significant purchasing power and ensures thet our commercial
terms are in ine with the market

While cost control 1s criticat, we take careful steps to make sure that
this does not affect the quality of service provided We work closely
with our service providers t¢ ensure that they maintaimn our required
standards, and routinely carry out supplier reviews to moniter
performance against key perfermance indicators ensuring that
suppliers implement action plans where necessary We include
insurance, roadside assistance and tyre replacement services on our
Customer Satisfaction Index, enabling us to benchmark and align the
performance of every provider

The Company’s policy 1s to settle terms of payment with suppliers
when ogreeing the terms of each transaction It is Motability
Operations’ policy to meet these terms of payment

Remarkehng

At the end of contract, we sell our returning fleet into the used
market During the financial year ended September 2012, we sold
191,000 cars into the used trade We have developed an innovative
multi-chennel disposal strategy ta manage these volumes This 1s
centred on a morket-leading online application which 1s augmented
by a proactive auction programme Our web-based tool, ‘mfldirect’,
15 available to certified trade subscrbers, through which they may
buy vehicles online 24 hours o day, seven days a week This route to
market has a number of cdvantages over physical channels including
Its lower cost, and in that it allows a more targeted approach This
systern platform was upgraded durng 2011 to ensure its future
capability and scalability

Our end-of-contract processes enable us to sell o car online before

it 1s returned at the end of lease While we target this marketing
across all our registered buyers, it provides @ particular epportunity for
the dealers who onginally supplied and then maintained the vehicle
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Directors’ report

Operational review continued

[t means that they can buy a low mileage, fully serviced vehicle that
they know first-hand, and which, through our end-of-contract
process, wilt most likely be returned to therr forecourt at the end of
lease This opportunity has been promoted to the dealers through the
‘Get Your Own Back’ marketing campaign

Our online sales channel, ‘mfldirect’, provides a competitive
purchasing environment and ensures that we both maximise our
sales return ond minimise disposal costs Online sales accounted for
over 64% of all disposals during 2012 Cors that do not sell online are
usuaily routed to auction and sold in one of our branded events We
have progressively routed more of our early-terminating stock via the
online channel, with an 18% increase in volumes year-on-year

Through the versatility of our remarketing strategies, the proactive
management of stock, and an increased buyer base, the remarketing
team has delivered an excellent performance in 2012, with over £70m
gains recognised across aggregate sales

Environment
Environmental 1ssues continue to feature prominently on the political
and economic agenda

We know that our custorners are keen to look for greener choices
However, given their irmited mobility, public transpart is, for them,
rarely a viable option We therefore aim to ensure that o range of
lower ermitting, higher MPG vehicle chaices 1s available {which in

turn are more cost effective for our customers) We continued to take
a proactve approach to managing our CO, emissions agenda with a
number of intigtives that prowide information and choice for our
customers These inctude

+ Introducing alternative vehicles with lower CO, emissions,
inctuding hybrids, combined fuel and new technology products

+ Making attractive, low CQ, cors avallable in all vehicle categories on
the Scheme (the price list highlights at teast two low €O, vehicles
In each vehicle category)

= Featuring green choices (low CO, vehictes) in all our
promotional mattings

» Providing practical advice to help lower motoring costs and CO,
emissions In aur custarmer publications, our annual customer
newsletters and through our website

Our approach te meeting our environmentol responsibilities also
extends to the management of our internal infrastructure Interms
of premises, we run a centinuing programme of capital investment
to ensure that our ptant and equipment remain energy efficient and
we actively aim to recycle an increasing propertion of our waste

We encourage employees to minimise their environmental footprint
through use of video-conferencing facilities, promoting lift-share
arrangements and our membership of the Government’s Cycle to
Work Scheme
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Motability Operations actively embraces its Corporate Social
Responsibility obligations This manifests in a number of
ways, Including

+ Through the Scheme’s core objectives, we help customers to
gain independence and lead fuller lives through affordable,
worry-free mobility

= We offer our facilities to various disability organisations and
local associations

+ We have an environmental policy which s reviewed through the
Health & Safety Commuttee and Risk Management Committee
Motability Operations is also registered with the Carbon Trust

= Qur HR pohiaes allow for flexible working, including staggered
and reduced working hours

+ We operate a scholarship programme which 1s designed to provide
financial support and work experience {through summer placements)
for a number of disabled students each year

Other environmental, soctal & governance policies
In addrtion to those set out above, MO also has the following policies
in place

+ Fraud & Bribery Prevention Policy

+ Employee Information Secunty Policy
+ Health & Safety Policy

+ Insider Trading & Information Policy
+ Whistle-blowing Policy

+ People Policy {iIncluding policies on Bullying & Harassment, Disability
Confidence, Diversity & Grievences)

These policies are made accessible te all employees vic the Company’s
intranet, and form part of the induction pack for all new starters

Chantable and poltical donations

During the yecr the Company made charitable donations of £49,084
{2011 £32,414) to support and sponsor local initiatives through our
‘mycemmunity’ programme

Qur policy 1s to be non-political and, consistent with this, we have
not made any political donations

Proposed dwdend
In accordance with the Shareholders’ agreement, the ordinary
shareholding carnes no nights to income

Directors’ indemnity

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, the Company
15 required to disclose that under article 163 of the Company's Articles
of Association the Directors have the benefit of cn indemnity, to the
extent perrmitted by the Companies Act 2006, against liabilities
incurred by therm in the execution of their duties and the exercise

of their powers



People and principles

People

Our people are fundamental to our success and we are
committed to recruiting and retaining an engaged cnd motivated
workforce We have created an excellent working environment
and promate a positive businass culture aligned to our core values
and principles We seek to develop our people and reward and
recognise excellent performance

Our values {(which are described to the nght) are central to gelivering
and meeting the needs and expectations of our customers

We embrace diversity, which enables us to have a wide vanety of
approaches and perspectives, enhancing performance and creating
value for customers We aim to be confident in meeting cur
customers’ needs

We believe that our business culture provides o foundation for success
For this reason, we are committed to carrying out independent
benchmarking through an annuat employee survey conducted by a
globat employee research and consulting firm The results are shared
with employees through rood shows hosted by the Chief Executive, with
key themes identified and actions being agreed to address ony 1ssues
that may emerge Results are compared against @ UK benchmork of
high-performing organisations In the last five years, Gur results have
signfficantly outperformed the *high-performing’ norm

Our leaders are assessed every year using 360-degree feedback

We also operate a structured graduate programme that seeks to
attract and recruit o number of high-calibre graduates each year from
a range of academic disciplines This involves an intensive 18-month
progremme that includes rotations in a number of areas of the
business After this penod, we expect graduates to move into key line
management or specialist roles

Our scholarship programme offers disabled students the opportunity
for work expenence and financial assistance durning their degree course

While regretted attrition levels are low, we manage the risk of
losing key individuals through regular talent reviews and succession
plonning Our Nominction Cornmittee reviews the plans for Directors
and semor managers High potential employees are identified

and we develop people through different mechanisms including
internel secondments

Principles

We have defined o number of positioring principles that underpin
our business strategy We use these alongside our values and culture
as reference points in conducting our day-to-day interactions with
customers, employees and other stakeholders Cur positioning
principles ensure that we

+ Compete on value and customer and disability expertise
+ Provide specialist support to remove barriers where appropriate

= Have excellent pic practices and governance

.

Work closely with Motability

« Maintain excellent relations with stakeholders

- Are recognised as an cutstanding and responsible employer
+ Are non-political and transparent

+ Ensure that our financial position 1s capable of sustaining the
Scheme nto the future

» Provide value for stakeholders
+ Are recognised and respected in the community

 Maintain a forward-looking green policy, balancing needs
with emissions

Our values

We strnive for excellence in customer service
+ Our customers are our first and major focus

< We take ownership

« We are disabilty-confident

We are passionate about what we do

+ We understand the aims and objectives of our business
¢+ We set high standards and go the extra mile
= We trust and respect others ond value differences

We have a high performance culture

- We strive for the highest standards
+ We recognise and reward strong performaonce and success
+ We creresilient and professional

We think and act commercially

« We have sound business judgement
We manage our business for the long term
» We understand the impact of cur decisions

We are friendly, flexible and faclitating

+ We act honestly and with integrity
« We haove a ‘can do' and solution-based approach
+ We work together and communicate openly

Employment of disabled people

We are committed to employing and retaining the best person for the
Job, whoever thot person may be Our policy 1s to ensure that disabled
people receve equal and faw consideration n recruitment, training and
career development Support and adjustments are provided to ensure
that the needs of employees who are, or become, disobled are met
The Company ensures that its policies and practices are not barners to
disabled people We are ‘Gold Card Members’ of the Business Disability
Forum {formerly the Employers’ Forum on Disability) We ore accredited
by Jobcentre Plus to use the Disability *two ticks’ symbol {‘positive
about disabled people’) We have an internal disability networking
group which I1s sponsored by the HR Director

Employee involvement

The Company seeks to engage all employees in short and long-term
gount setting This1s achieved through the use of a number of
communication methods including senier management briefings,
workshops, the Compeany newsletter, employee consultation forums
and through a corporate intranet
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Risk management

At Motability Operations, we recognise that sound nisk management
15 fundomental to the successful and sustainable operation of the
business It 1s a core commitment thot our approach protects the
Interests of custorners and seeks to ensure thot risks are manoged
sufficiently to avoid pricing shocks through the extremes of the
economic cycle

Our approach to nsk management 15 both dynamic and robust, aiming
to ensure that we identify, quantify and manoge all material risks

Qur Risk Policy, which 1s enshrined within our governance framework,
15 overseen and managed by our Risk Manogement Committee

We make certain that, through this policy and approoch, our activities
meet standards of behaviour and fall within boundaries that are
consistent with our approved tevel of appetite for nsk Whilst we do
not fall under FSA regulation, we seek to align our nsk management
approach with best market practice

We use Economic Capital principles {descnbed opposite) to daterrmine
and manage our reserves position

Risk identification and monitonng

We have designed our risk management framework around the ‘three
lines of defence’ approach to nsk governance Consistent with this
approach, we have a dedicated risk menagement function that is
integral to co-ordinating, monitoring and advising on cantrol actvities

This holistic approach encompasses all matenal risks, with clearly
dentified accountabilities and responsibilities for nsk management,
control and assurance As such, risk monagement is incorporated as
a core port of effective business planning and capital management

We regularly update our nisk management framework to ensure that
it rermains appropriate to the business These updates include regutar
assessments of risks and controls, including the update of risk
registers, and early identification of any ermerging risks to the
achievement of our stated objectives

Risk management framework

Key risks and mitigations

Residual values

The most significant risk we face 1s the exposure to unforeseen and
matenal movement in the market value of second-hond vehicles This
is measured as the difference between the forecast values used for
pricing and the latest projected market value at the end of tease

Through cur team of experts, we have developed and implemented
an in-house residual volue forecasting model 1o help manage this
rnsk This combines the latest econometric modelling techmiques
with subjective feedback gathered from used car buyers and

market experts We developed the model in consultation with
Oxford Economic Forecasting, which has validated and endorsed our
approach The model 1s peniodically re-cabbrated and vaolidated - the
most recent Independent review being completed durning the year
ended September 2012 Since it was first implemented in October
2004, our in-house model has outperformed the alternative market
benchmarks We also undertake a quarterly re-forecasting exercise
to review and moenitor the actual position and ossess the associated
financial iImpacts of any movement in residual values

There 15, in addition, an associated risk of differences arising between
the benchmark market value and the net proceeds we are able to
realise on disposal This gap can be affected by the effectiveness

of our remarketing performance, by vehicie mix, concentration

and condition

We manage this disposal performance risk through the effectiveness
of our remarketing activity, through our streamtined logistics
operation and through our commercial sales force Our prooctive
portfolio management has reduced concentration nsk in recent years,
with a broad spread of models and manufacturers now reprasented in
our diversified fleet

We have designed our nsk management fromework around the ‘three hines of defence’ approach to risk governance

1st line of defence Primary sk management

+ Controls designed into processes and procedures  «  Project nsk identification end menagement

Control Risk Self Assessrments and control processes

action plans Directors’ Risk Assessments

2nd line of defence Risk contro!

Company Performonce Report ond KPTs
Actraties of the Boord and Committees

« PRusk department activities
» Policies and pracedures, e g Authonties Manual

Directors and Heads of Function Annual
Accountability Statements

Risk management

3rd line of defence Assurance

Foltow up of agreed recormmendotions
against impiementotion desdlines and
subseqguent reporting
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Supplier fallure

Our core product offering 1s delivered through controcts with key
suppliers who provide vehicle insurance, roadside assistance, and tyre
ond windscreen replacement services The failure of a key supplier
would create difficulty for customers and potentially have significant
financial implications os we seek alternative service providers We
manage this risk primarnly through ongeing liaison and maintenance
of strong relationships with our key suppliers We also routinely
reassess therr creditworthiness

We have specifically assessed the rsk of failure of one or more of our
key manufacturers Such o fallure would probably lead to impaired
residucl vatues, invalid warranties, non-availability of parts and
maintenance providers, and the potential withdrawal or renegotiation
of discounts We seek to manage this risk through routinely
menitoring manufacturer-related news and by diversifying aur
portfolic to minimise our exposure to the default of ony one
manufccturer We have also developed scenaros to stress-test our
durability i the fece of such a falure, and are confident that our
economic capital approach means that we have assigned sufficient
risk capital to withstand such an event

Credit nisk

Our income 1s principally received from the DWP, through the
allowances assigned to us by our customers, hence the credit risk

1s cansidered to be very low Where the tatal cost of the lease exceeds
the value of the customers’ allowance, then the customer Is required
to make an upfront balancing payment - the ‘odvance payment’ -
prior to taking possession of the vehicle

We proactively manage the small residual credit nsk that anses from
miscelleneous customer billings, monies due from dealers, cuction
houses and vehicle manufacturers To this end, we regularly carry out
credit assessments of the imits set for auction houses, menufocturers
and dealers and receive exception reports from monitoring cgencies
Exposure to dealer debt s largely mitigated through the ‘zero-day’
direct debit collection process - with the cash callection being triggered
at the point the sale 1s transacted (and before title 1s passed)

Treasury risk

The avallabibity of sustainable funding and iquidity 1s crniticat to our
ongoing operation This has been brought into sharpened focus since
the ‘credit crunch’ with scarcity of competitive funding affecting many
businesses Risks include those associated with exposure to interest
and exchange rate movements, liquidity, funding, counterparty and
operational nisk

We manage these nsks through a well defined Treasury Policy, the
operation of which 1s overseen by the Asset and Lichility Management
Committee - a sub-commuttee of the Executive Committee We
maintain a nsk-averse stance and continue to develop ¢ diversified
portfolio of funding maturities, seeking to lock the majonty of funding
onto fixed rates Our policy 15 also to avoid exotic treasury products
Through our rabust fingncial management and governance we seek
to maintain a credit rating that allows us access tc a range of debt
markets on competitive terms It 1s our policy to ensure that we
maintain sufficient financing facilities i place to cater for projected
growth over the next 12 months, plus 20% headroom

Restricted reserves and economic capital

Ensuring that we have the financial resilience to withstand econormic
turbulence without compromising the customer offering 1s at the
forefront of our approach to balance sheet management The

Group halds ‘restnicted reserves’ to provide the necessary financial
shock-absorber to ensure this sustainability into the long term
Restricted reserves are retained exclusively for the benefit of

the Scheme - with ordinary shareholders having no entitlement

to dividends

The Group uses Economic Capital (EC) principles to determine the
appropriate level of restncted reserves The EC process involves
undertaking a comprehensive assessment of the material risks and
evaluated potential Impacts the Group foces given its core actimvities
The key rnisks are outlined in the table on poge 26

This enables us to calculate our Economic Capital Requirement
(ECR), using a model to aggregate potential losses at the required
confidence level and determine a ‘per vehicle’ requirement The
EC methodology we use Is conservative, and encompasses all
material nsks, delivering on outcome that management views

as reasonable and prudent

We then apply the estimated ECR per vehicle to our current and
projected contract hire fleet size This gives us an overall current
and projected ECR for the full contract hire fleet We periodically
refresh the EC model to reflect changes to the risk profiling and
refinements (n the medelling This process 1s governed by the Risk
Management Committee

Not only do we perform an annual review of this mode! to ensure
that it adequatety reflects the current nsk profile of the business, but
we also periodically validate our approach through an independent
external review

The most recent review, commussicned in 2010, concluded by
corroborating our approach as robust, proportionate cnd
commensurate with emerging best practice It identified o well
developed programme of stress-testing and the active engogement
of both the Board and senior management in the economic capital
process, and noted that, through the application of this approprictely
conservative methedology, our capital position benchmarks well to
that of peer financial institutions

Our policy 1s to seek to manage reserves within a target operating
carndor of between 100% and 130% of the ECR, to protect the
longevity of the Scheme OQperating this policy aims to ensure that
the Group's restricted reserves are maintained above sufficency -
providing greater tolerance in the event of economic shock, and so
less volatility 1n lease pricing for the customer

The Group uses a comprehensve range of stress-test scenarios

to validate the Economic Capital opproceh By running a series of
hypothetical market specific and wider economic extreme stress
scenarios, we can objectively scrutinise the efficacy of the Group's
restricted reserves The conclusion of this stress-testing 1s to affirm
the extremety rabust nature of the Group’s balance sheet - and so
provide management with great confidence and assuronce as we
look to the future
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Directors’ report

Summary of our key risks and mitigations

Through our comprehensive nsk management processes we identify and assess the potential nsks
that we face Having understood the nature of these nsks, we ensure that we have the appropnate
mitigants in place to reduce these exposures

We use Economic Capital principles to determine and manage our reserves position in the context
of these risks Through this policy and approach we ensure that the business remains sustainable

through the economic cycle

Risk factors

Residval values

Unexpected movements in used
car values, failure to achieve
market value on disposal

Potential impact

- Volatility in profitabiity, reserves and pricing
Potential impact on offordability and choice

Mitigation

« Sophisticated in-house residucl value setting
and forecasting process

+ Risk Copital management for asset risk using
Economic Capital principles

+ Market-leading remarketing approach

Supplier failure

Failure of key manufacturer
or other key Scheme supplier

« Compromised customer service provision
and potential finanaial impact of secunng
alternative supplier

* In case of manufacturer failure, likely
impairment of residual velues and threatened
avallabiity of parts and worranties

* Active monitoring of credit ratings and market
announcements

* Strong supplier relationships and communication
+ Diversified pertfclio

Credit
Risk of default of key income

streams and exposure to
bad debt

+ Potentiol mpact on cash nflows and
consequent write-off to Income Statement

+ Princtpal income stream directly from
DWP - therefore minimal credit risk

* Residual credit risks are managed through
credit ossessments and an effective credit
control function

Treasury

Exposure to interest or exchange
rate movements, iquidity,
funding, counterparty and
operational nsk

+ Potential impects include volatility in funding
costs, with kneck-on effects on iease pricing,
and lack of availability of growth funding

+ Majority of funding on fixed rates or fixed through
interest rate and/or foreign currency swaps

+ Balanced portfalio of funding matunties and
diversification into bond market

* Maintenance of good credit rating

+ Good treasury system, controls
and governance

Operational

Risk of failure of key systems,
controls or processes

- Potential financiat and reputationat risk
* Risk of business disruption
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+ Robust control environment

+ Active monitoning of Business Continuity and
Disaster Recovery plans




Board of Directors

Membership of the Board comprises a Non-Executive Chairman, five Executive Directors,
five Independent Non-Executive Directors and four Non-Executive Directors

Neil Johnson OBE

Non-Executive Chairman

Neil was appointed Chairman of Motability Operations in 2001
He was appointed as Non-Executive Chairman of Motability
Operations Group plc on 20 March 2008

Executive Directors

Mike Betts

Chief Executive

Mike joined the Motability Operctions Board in 2002 and was
appointed to the position of Chief Executive Officer in September
2003 He was appointed os Chief Executive Officer of Motability
Operations Group plc on 20 March 2008

Anne Downey

HR Director

Anne joined Motability Operations 1n 1997, and was appointed to
the Board in 2004 She was appointed as an Executive Director of
Motability Operations Group plc on 17 September 2008

Dawd Gilman

Finance Director

David joined the Motability Operations Board in 2003 as Finance
Director He was appainted as an Executive Director of Motability
Operctions Group plc on 30 June 2008

lan Goswell

Commercial Services Director

lan joined the Matability Operations Board as Commercial Services
Director in 2004 He was appointed as an Executive Director of
Motability Operations Group plc on 17 September 2008

Ashley Sylvester

Operations Director

Ashley joined the Motability Operctions Board in 2004 as Asset and
Pricing Director and in 2006 was appointed Operations Director He
was appointed as an Executive Director of Motability Qperatigns
Group plc on 17 Septernber 2008

Non-Executive Directors

John Callender

Independent Non-Executive Director

John has been a Non-Executive Director of Motability Operations
since 1993 He was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Motability Operations Group plc on 30 June 2008

Nigel Clibbens

Non-Executive Director

Nigel has been a Non-Executive Director of Motability Operations since
2002 He was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of Motability
Operations Group plc on 30 June 2008 {alternate — Peter Lord,
appointed 17 September 2008)

Frank Gardner OBE

independent Non-Executive Director

Frank was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Motability Operations Group plc on 10 December 2008

Joe Hennessy OBE

Independent Non-Executive Director

Joe has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of Motability
Operations since 2006 He was appointed ¢s an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Motability Operations Group plc on

30 June 2008

Chnistopher Lendrum CBE

Independent Non-Executive Director

Christopher was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Motability Operations Group plc on 10 June 2009

Dawvid Oldfield

Non-Executive Director

David waos appointed as a Non-Executive Director of Motability
Operations Group plc on 14 September 2011 (alternate - Richard
Francis, oppointed 14 September 2011)

Mark Parsons

Non-Executive Director

Mark was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of Motability
Operations Group plc on 20 February 2012 (alternate - lan Stuart,
appeinted 20 February 2012 and resigned 13 June 2012, when
Duncan Rowberry was appointed)

Mike Russell-Brown

Non-Executive Director

Mike has been o Non-Executive Director of Motability Operations since
2006 He was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of Motability
Operations Group plc on 30 June 2008 (alternate - Malcolm Brookes,
resigned 31 July 2012)

Davd Smith

Independent Non-Executive Director

David wos appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Motability Operations Group plc on 1 July 2010

lo Penfland

Company Secrefary

Jo jeined Motability Operations in 2003 and as a fully qualified
Chartered Secretary was appointed to the role of Company Secretary
in 2005 She was appointed as Company Secretory of Motability
Operat:ons Group ple on 20 March 2008
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Directors’ report

Other statutory information

Staterment of Directors’ responsibilities

The Drrectors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and
the finencial statements in accordance with applicable low and
regulations Company law requires the Directors to prepare financiol
statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have
prepared the Group and Parent Company financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reparting Stendards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union Under company law the Directors
must net approve the fingncial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of offairs of the Group
and the Parent Company and of the surplus or loss of the Group for
that period

In preparing these financial statements the Directors are reguired to
+ Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently
+ Make judgements that are prudent and reascnable

» State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the Eurepean Union
have been followed

+ Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
untess it Is inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue
in business

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above
requirements in preparing the financial statements The Directors
are responsible for keeping proper accounting records thot disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and to enable them to ensure that the financiol statements
comply with the Companies Act They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for toking reasonable steps
far the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

So far as each Director 1s aware there 1s no relevant information of
which the Group’s auditors are unoware Each Dhrector has taken all
the steps that they ought to have tcken in their duty as a Directer in
order to make themselves aware of any relevant information and to
establish that the Group’s cuditers are aware of that information

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed on
page 27, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge

+ The Group financicl staterments, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, give
a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
surplus of the Group, and

+ The Directors’ Report includes a foir review of the devetopment
and performance of the business and the position of the Group,
together with a descrnption of the principal risks and uncertainties
that it faces

Going concern

The Directors are satisfied that the Group has adequate resources to
continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future, and for
this reason the financial statements continue to be prepared on the
going concern basis

Independent Audrtors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their
willingness to continue in office and a reselution to reappoint them
will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting
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Directors

Neil Johnson, Mike Betts, John Caliender, Nigel Clibbens, Anne Downey,
Frank Gardner, David Gilman, Ion Goswell, Joe Hennessy,
Christopher Lendrurn, Dowvid Oldfield, Mike Russell-Brown, Dovid Smith
and Ashley Sylvester served as Directors throughout the year

Richard Francis and Peter Lord served os alternate Directors
throughout the year

Mark Parsons was appointed as a Director on 20 February 2012

lan Stuart was appointed as Mark Parsons' alternate as
of 20 February 2012 and resigned on 13 June 2012 when
Duncan Rewberry was appointed

Martin Lord was oppotnted as Mike Russell-Brown's alternate as
of 1 November 2012

Antony Jenkins resigned as a Director on 20 February 2012
Malcolm Brookes resigned as an alternate Director on 31 July 2012

Directors’ inferests
No Directors have any share interest in the Group, nor any material
interest in any contract entered into by the Group

Signed by order of the Board

c) : ~dend

Jo Pentland
Company Secretary

13 Decermber 2012




Governance

Corporate governance

The Board considers thot good corporate governance 1s central to
achieving the objectives of Motability Operations, and that this
underpins the sustainability of our product offering As such we are
committed to high standards of corporate governance

While the Board has overall responsibility for the success of the
business, its strategic direction, governance and financial control, the
Executive Committee 1s responsible for the day-to-day management

of the Group and, in particular, for the formulation of strategy,
supervising operational management, and providing structure and
leadership for the business

The Board meets on a querterly basis, in December, March, June and
Septermber The ogenda will typically include a review of the Company
Performance Report (including a financiai and cperational review),

a Chief Executive’s update, and Company Secretary updates

Governance structure
Motability Operations
Group plc
Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee
Motability Operations
Executive Committee
Risk Mgt Pncing Mgt Asset & Liobiity Suppler Mgt Project Mgt Informahon & Customer Mgt
Committee Committee Mgt Committee Commuites Committee Systems Security Committee
Committee

The Board's responsibilities
Matters reserved for the Board include

+ Promoting the success of the business
+ Approvat of strategy proposed by the Executive Committee
« Approval of financial reporting and controls

» Ensuring maintenance of a sound system of internal control
and risk management

- Approval of major capital projects

+ Ensuring adequate succession planning for the Board and
senior managerment

» Undertaking reviews of its own performance and that of other
Board committees

+ Approval of Group pelicies

+ Approval of the structure and terms of reference of the
Board committees

Roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive has been clearly established The responsibility of the
Non-Executive Chairman includes leading the Board and ensuring its

effectiveness This includes setting the agende for Board meetings
and, with the assistonce of the Company Secretary, arranging for the
Directors to receve timely, accurcte and clear information ahead of
Board meetings

The Chief Executive Is responsible for leading and maenaging the
business on a day-to-day basis with authorities delegated by

the Board, and 15 accountable to the Board for the financial and
operational performance of the Group This day-to-day management
15 effected through the Executive Commutteg, with the Chief Executive
as Charr

Non-Executive Directors

The Nan-Executve Directors combine brood business and
commercial knowledge to enable them to chollenge and contribute
to the development of our strategy They bring an independent
Judgerment to all business Issues through their contribution at
Board and Committee meetings The Chairman is sctisfied that

the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent in both
character and judgement

Executive Commitiee

The Executive Committee 1s chaired by Mike Betts, Chief Executive, and
includes David Gilman, Finance Director, Anne Downey, HR Director,
[an Goswell, Commercial Services Director, Ashley Sylvester, Operations
Director, and Jo Pentland, Company Secretary, as members
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Governance

Corporate governance continued

The Executive Cormmittee met 12 times during the financial year
and it has delegated authority from the Boord to

» Manage the day-to-day business operation
+ Develop and set strategic objectives

= Agree policy guidelines

+ Agree the Group's budgets and ptans and, once these are adopted

by the Board, be responsible for achieving them

« Ensure appropriate levels of authority are delegated to
senlor muncgement

- Ensure the co-ordination and monitoring of the Group’s internal
controts and ensure that activities undertaken are conducted
within the Group's risk appetite

- Sofeguard the integrity of management information and financial

reporting systems
+ Approve oll supplier agreements

+ Ensure the provision of adequate management development
and succession, and recommendotion and iImplementation of
appropriate remuneration structures

« Develop and implerment Group policies through the Governance
Committees (Asset and Liability Management, Risk Managemnent,
Supplier Manggement, Information & Systemns Security
Management, Project Managermnent, Pricing Management and
Customer Management)

+ Agree internal authority imits and control

The Executive Committee meeting 1s kept informed and updated by
the subordinate Governance Committees and monthly Executive
Committee packs are sent to the Non-Executive Directors for
information The Executive Committee reports quarterly to the main
Board and there 1s a standard Board agenda item which allows any

Director to comment or ask questions on the content of the Executive

Committee packs

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive

Directors and four Non-Executive Directors The Committee (s chaired

by Chnstopher Lendrum, the other members being John Callender,
Nigel Clibbens, Dawd Oldfield, Mark Parsons, Mike Russell-Brown and

David Smith Executive Directors and members of senior management

are in attendance where appropriate The Committee has delegated
authority from the Board to

* Review and recommend the annual assurance plan to the Board
and receive reports fram Internal Audit on progress against plan

+ Oversee all assurance activity and monitor the adequacy and
effectiveness of such activity

= Review audit reports and menitor management’s progress against

ogreed actions

« Monitor the objectivity, iIndependence and effectiveness of the extemal

ouditars, Including the sanction of non-audit activity undertaken

» Consider ony substantive control 1ssues ansing, including major
control failures or ncidents

+ Oversee the operation of the nsk management framework,
including the risks identified in the corporate risk register

+ Oversee internal and public financial reporting
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The Committee meets quarterly in advance of meetings of the main
Board, at which the Commuttee chairman reports Matters considered
at every meeting include

« The Company’s capital position, Including the evolution of major
risks and their implication for capital requirements as recorded and
measured through the nsk register

A Treasury Report covering policy and factors affecting iguidity
(including bank finance avallability and bond market access} te
ensure thet satisfactery iquidity 1s maintained at all umes

+ Progress reports from the responsible Executive Director on all
current major change programmes and projects

- Internal Audit reports and i1ssue resclution over the previous quarter

= Reports on any significant control fallures or incidents over the
previous quarter

The financial statements for the half year and full year are considered
in depth at the Commuttee’s May and December meetings
respectively, with the benefit of a detailed report on the findings

of the externcl auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (Pw(), who are

in ottendance to present their report and respend to questions In
issuing unqualified reports In the year ended 30 September 2012 the
auditors provided approprniate assurance and identified no matters

of matenal concern to the Committee

The Committee 1s satisfied that PwC complies with UK regulatory and
professional requirements and that its objectivity 1s not compromised
The current lead audit partner Anne Simpson has been i post for
some four years, and will be subject to change in 2013 urder the
provisions of PwC's partner rotation policy PwC has held the audit
contract for the Company since 2008, and it 1s envisaged thot it will
be put out to tender in 2018 in conformance with the updated UK
Corporate Governance Code of the Financial Reporting Councit

In recognition of the importance of evaluating its own effectiveness,
in 2012 the Commuttee undertock a review covering members’
experience and knowledge in the context of the key aspects of its
work, the results of which were both reassuring and useful in
preparing for future challenges

CLufpr—

Chnstopher Lendrum CBE
Audit Committee Charrman




Nominahon Committee

The Nomination Committee comnprises the Non-Executive Charman
and two Independent Nen-Executive Directors [t 1s chaired by

Neil Johnson and the other members are John Callender and
Chnistopher Lendrum The CEO and HR Director are in attendance
where appropriate The Committee meets bi-annually and has
delegated authonty from the Board to

+ Review succession and retention plans

+ Review plans for the appointment of new Directors and
reappointment of Non-Executive Directors ot the end of ther term

« Review the structure, size and composition of the Board

Recognising the importance of assessing the Board's effectiveness
and performance for good corporate governance, an evaluation of the
Board was undertaken in late 2011 The process involved review of a
number of areas including

+ The Boord’s processes, composition and size
+ The Board's objectives, remit and terms of reference

- Quality, quantity and frequency of information fiow from and
to management

+ Skills of the Directors
+ Relationships with stakeholders

The results of the evaluation exercise were reviewed by the Charman
and the Nomiation Committee and were presented to the Board in
March 2012 In summary

+ 85% of respondents rated the performance of the Board i relation
to other Boards as ‘outstanding’and  ‘well chead of others’
The remaining 15% rated the Board's performance as ‘very good
to excellent’

Respondents stated that

+ The Board regularly monitored end evaluated the performance
of the Company against its strategy ond annual operating plan
halding the Executive eppropriately accountable

« The Chairman was an effective leader of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness n all aspects of its role and setting its agenda

= The Boord understood and approved the strategy far the Company,
as proposed by the Executive

+ The financial reporting data approved by the Boord for publication
presented a balanced and clecr assessment of the Company's
position and praspects

g/ —

Neil Johnson OBE
Nominaton Committee Chairman

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the Non-Executive Chairman
of Motability Operations, four Independent Non-Executive Directors
and one Non-Executive Director

The Committee 1s chaired by John Callender, the other members being
Neil Johnson, Joe Hennessy, Christopher Lendrurm, Mark Parsons and
David Srmith En addition, the Commuittee draws on the expertise of an
externcl independent specialist for benchmarking, for advice on best
practice and to confirm that a thorough and well governed process is
applied No employee Is permitted to participate in discussions ar
decisions which directly relate to their own remuneration

The Commuittee meets bi-annually ond has detegated authonty from
the Board to review and approve

* The overall positioning of market competitive remuneration packages
+ Bose salaries and increases for the Executive Directors

+ The design, terms and eligibility of performance-related pay
schermaes including long-term incentive arrangements

+ When short and long-term payments witl be made and whether
any portion of such payments should be deferred

The policy for pension arrangements and other benefits for
the Directors

- The broad pelicy for the remuneration of all employees, the
imptementation of which 1s delegoted to the Executive Committee

The Committee reports bi-arnually to the main Board and works
closely with the Audit and Nomination Committees

Remuneration report

The link between performance and pay

As described in poges 8-17 the Company has a clear strategic
agenda, with an cverarching purpose of prowiding customers with
independence and moblity by offering a wide choice of vehicles ot
affordable pnces Each year, the Company reviews and refreshes this
strotegic agendo with annual objectives ond torgets being adjusted
accordingly Remuneration 1s then inked very clearly to these
Company and individual performance targets as well as by reference
to individuals’ ability te demonstrate performance consistent with the
Company’s core vatues (see below)

Performance appraisals are conducted annually by employees’ direct
managers ond leaders are assessed every year using 360-degree
feedback Employees’ appraisal ratings directly drive any discretionary
pay awards Each Executive Director and Head of Function also
receives and 1s reguired to comply with an Accountability Statement
which not only describes departmental objectives and budgets

but oiso catalogues expectations in respect of a range of matters
including nsk mancgement, diversity, fraud & bribery prevention

and adherence to Company policies

Motability Operations’ culture and its people are fundamental to its
success and the Cornpany 1s committed to recrurting and retaining
on engaged ond motivated workforce The Company’s core values,
iterated below, are central to delivening excellent performance These
core values are

+ To provide excellence in customer service
+ To be passionate about what we do

- To have a high perfarmance culture

+ To think and act commercially

= To be friendly, fieuble and facilitating
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Governance

Corporate governance continued

The main measure of the Company’s culture (s through the use
of an annual employee survey conducted by an independent
external company

The performance of the Company, Its culture and the nisks facing
the Company are regularly considered when the Beard and the
Rermuneration Committee address remuneration matters

Motability Operations deploys proportionate pay and benefit
programmes which faciliiote the achievement of its objectives

The Company reviews 1ts remuneration against the market to ensure
that remuneration Is affordable and competitive over the long term,
15 able to attract talent, and incentivises and encourages retention,
whilst ot the same time ensunng it does not encourage Inappropriate
behawviours and actions The Company does not reward poor
performance or fallure The Company places the highest

importance on meeting both short-term performance targets

and long-term objectives

The Company has no share or share option schemes and pay for all
employees, Executive Directors, the Non-Executive Charrman and
Independent Non-Executive Directors 1s managed threugh the PAYE
system (Pay As You Ecrn)

Key remuneration elements for employees and

Executive Directors

Remuneration seeks to strike an appropnate balonce between fixed
and vonable pay

The key elements of remuneration for employees are
+ Base pay

= Annuol performance-related payments These payments are
not guaranteed and are overtty inked to clear and sustainable
measures of business performance

+ Non-contnbutory pension scheme (defined contribution)

+ Benefits including private medical insurance, life ossurance and
critical illness cover A company car/allowance 1s provided for
certain roles

The key elements of remuneration for Executive Directors are
* Base pay

+ Annual performance-related payments

* Long-term incentive arrangements

» Non-contributory pension scheme (defined contribution} In light
of the ‘annual’ and ‘life-time’ imits the Government introduced
in 2010, Directors can reduce or cease contributions being
made to the Company’s pension scheme and, instead, receve
@ pension allowance

+ Benefits including private medical insurance, tife assurance,
company carfallowance and cnitical illness cover

Annual performance-related pay awards and payments into long-
term incentive arrangements are not guaranteed and are overtly
linked to clear and sustainable meosures of business performance
Annuol performance-related payments for the Executive Directors
are linked to both business and personal performance They are
discretionary and connot exceed 50% of base salary

Long-term ncentive arrangements apply to the CEQ and the Executive
Directors There are two pregrammes (0 place

(1) The Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) is linked to the Compony’s
long-term objectives of mantenance of sufficient reserves, high levels
of customer satisfaction and renewal levels, tease offordability and
excellent business culture Any payment is also determined by
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reference to the Company's external credit rating The Plan ams to

encourage sustained excellent performance and the retention of

Directors and 1s consistent with FSA principles in respect of long-term

incentives The ownership structure of the Company precludes the

use of shares or share options as long-term incentives Bowever,

the Plan overtly and directly inks any future poyout with clear and

unambigucus measures of sustained performance aligned to the |
Company’s strateqic objectives Performance cntena are designed !
so0 that units allocated into the Plan can both increase and decrease

in value The main feotures of the LTIP are

+ The Remuneration Committee determines annually, on a
discretionary basis, whether LTIP units should be allocated to
any Executive Director The notional value of an altocated urit
15 £1,000, with the accurnulated value varying up or down in
subsequent years

= Potential payouts are deferred for three years

- The value of any potential payout is determined by e¢nnual
assessment against specific perfarmance requirements in
respect of the level of customer service, custormer retention,
lease affordability, reserves adequocy and business culture

+ Potentiol poyouts are olso iImpacted by movements in the
Company’s crecit rating

Cn the third anniversary of the initial allocction of units into the LTIP,
the accumulated units can be converted into cash and released

{2) The Long Term Incentive Scheme (LTIS) for the CEO was (ntroduced
in October 2010 It 15 a ‘one-off', five-year programme As regards

any future value the Scheme mirrors the LTIP except in the

following respects

* Any value attaching to units allocated at the discretion of
the Remuneration Committee will be paid, subject to specific
performance requirements (per the LTIP} and continuing
employment, only after the fifth cnniversary of the inital allocation

+ The CEO can elect at the point of allocation that the volue of
any units be released In five years at the nominal allocation
vatue, thereby foregoing ony potential volue enhancement but
avoiding olso the prospect of units having no, or diminished
value Alternatively, he can elect that the value of allocations be
determined by reference to the same cntenia as those applying
to the LTIP1e by annual assessment against specific performance
requirements in respect of the level of customer service and
retention, reserves adequacy and business culture and with
potential payouts also being impacted by movements in the
Company's credit rating

Key remuneration elements for Non-Executive Chairman and
the Independent Non-Executive Directars

The Chairmnan receves an annual fee, a company car/allowance ond
private medical insurance The Chairman does not receve any other
benefits or pension

The Independent Non-Executive Directors receive a basic annual fee
In addition, when an Independent Non-Executive Director i1s a
member or chair of o Board Committee, o seporate fee 1s paid

Details of Directors’ remunerction ore set out In note 31 on pages
59-60 of the Financial Statements

,/‘.//»’-/M%/

John Callender
Remuneration Committee Chairman




Financial statements

Independent Auditors’ report to the members
of Motability Operations Group plc

We have audited the Group and Parent Company financial statements (the ‘financial statements’) of Motability Cperations Group ple for the
yeor ended 30 September 2012 which comprise the Group Income Statement, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group

and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Group and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the Group and Parent Company
Statements of Cash Flows, and the related ncotes The financial reporting framework that has been applied n their preparation 1s applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) os adapted by the European Union and, as regards the Parent Company financial
statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilihes of Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully in the Staternent of Directors' responsibilities set out on page 28, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to cudit and express an opinion on the
financial stotements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Treland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinians, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s Members as a body n accordance with Chapter 3 of

Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, In giving these opinicns, cccept or assume respensibility for any other
purpose or to any other persan to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agread by our prior
consent in wnting

Scope of the audtt of the financial stafements

An gudit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to ave reasonable assurance
that the financial staterments are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and Parent Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the
financial staterments In addition, we read all the financial and non-financioi nfermation i the Annual Report and Accounts to identify
materal inconsrstencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
Inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion

« the financial statements give ¢ true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 30 September 2012
and of the Group’s surplus and Group's and Parent Company's cash flows for the year then ended,

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

+ the Parent Compaeny financial statements have been properly prepored in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and
as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Cornpanies Act 2006, and

+ the financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with the requirernents of the Companies Act 2006 and, s regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opimien the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial yecr for which the financial statements are prepared 15 consistent
with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required 1o report by exception
We have nothing 1o report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If, in our opinion

 adequate acceunting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved from
branches not visited by us, or

« the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
s certan disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by low are not made, or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit
Q"“"" :

Anne Simpson (Senior Statutory Auditor}

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, United Kingdom

13 December 2G12
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Financial statements

Income statement
For the year ended 30 September 2012

012 2011

Group Group

Note £m £m

Revenue 4 3,1263 2,8609
Net operating costs 6 (2,700 7) {2,483 7)
Surplus from operations 4256 3772
Fingnce cosis 9 (165 9) (144 Q)
Surplus before tax 2597 2332
Taxation 10 (25 4) {27 3)
Surplus for the year 2343 2059

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Group has elected to take the exemption with regard to disclosing the Company income
stotement and statement of comprehensive income The Company’s surplus for the year was £6 8m {2011 £9 7m)

The surplus I1s non-distributable and held for the benefit of the Scheme

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 September 2012

2012 2011

Group Group

£m £m

Surplus for the year 2343 2059

Other comprehensive income

Gains/{losses) on movements in fair value of cash flew hedging derivatives 55 (73)
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income {16) 16
Other comprehensive income/{deficit) for the year, net of tax 39 5%
Total cornprehensive income for the year attributable to equity 2382 2002

The notes on pages 38 to 68 form part of these fingncial statements
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Balance sheets

As atf 30 September 2012
2012 2011 2012 2011
Group Group Company Company
Note £m fm £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 11 78 34 - -
Property, plant and equipment 12 155 62 - -
Assets held for use in operating leases 13 53126 49766 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 15 - - 126 126
Leans to other Group cempanies 15 - - 3,3350 3,1952
Hire purchase recewvables 17 226 406 - -
Trade and other recevables 18 135 - -
Deferred tax asset 24 58 73 31 48
53778 50341 3,3507 3,2126
Current ossets
Corporation tax receivable 136 140 - 12
Inventories 14 68 4 a0 7 - -
Loans to other Group companies 15 - - 43 4 40 4
Cash ond bank balances 16 1025 337 923 310
Hire purchase receivables 17 160 222 - -
Trade and other receivables 18 2189 2104 185 105
4194 3410 154 2 831
Total assets 5,797 2 53751 3,504 9 3,2957
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Deferred income 18 (178 5) {146 4) - -
Trade and other payables 20 (145 0) (1321) (103 3) (42 6)
Financial liabilities 21 (89 7) (802) (46 4) {352}
Denvative financial nstruments 22 (0 6) (72) (0 6) (72}
Provision for other licbilites 23 {2 1) (21) - -
(415 9) (368 0) {150 3) (850}
Net current assets/(kabilitias) s (27 0) 39 (19}
Non-current liabilities
Deferred incorne 15 (172 0} (181 3) - -
Financal babilities 21 (3,271 8) (3,193 8) (3,271 8) (3,193 7)
Derivative finanoial nstruments 22 (62 4) (72) (62 4) (72
Deferred tax liabilities 24 4709 (458 7) - -
(3,977 1) (3,8410) (3,334 2) (3,200 9)
Total liabilities (4,393 0} (4,2090) (3,484 5) {3,2859)
Net assets 1,404 2 1,166 1 204 98
Equity
Ordinary share capital 25 g1 01 01 01
Hedging reserve (10 1) (139) (101} (139)
Restricted reserves (*) 1,414 2 1,1799 304 236
Total equity 1,404 2 1,166 1 204 98

{*} Restricted reserves are retained for the benefit of the Scheme As regards ordinary shareholders, there 1s no dwdend entitlement A reserves management
policy has been established te ensure that the business and the customer propositicn are sustainable throughout the economic cycle

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors an 13 Decernber 2012

>

Mike Betts
Chief Executive

Motability Operations Group plc
Registered number 6541091

The notes on pages 38 to 68 form part of these financial statements
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Statements of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 September 2012

Ordingry share Hedging Restricted Total
capital reserve reserves equity
Group £m £m £m £Em
At 1 October 2010 01 (82} 9740 9659
Comprehensive iIncome
Surplus for the year - - 2059 2059
Other comprehensive iIncome
Losses on movements in fair volue of cash flow hedging denvatives - {73} - (73
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive Income - 16 - 16
Total comprehensive (deficit)/income - {57 2059 2002
At 1 October 2011 01 (139 1,179 9 1,166 1
Comprehensive income
Surplus for the year - - 2343 2343
Other comprehensive iIncome
Gains on movements in fair value of cash flow hedging dervatives - 55 - 55
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive Income - {17} - (17
Total comprehensive iIncome - 38 2343 2381
At 30 September 2012 01 {10 1) 1,414 2 1,404 2
Ordinary share Hedging Restncted Totel
capitol reserve reserves equity
Company £m £m £m £m
At 1 October 2010 01 (82) 139 58
Comprehensive iIncome
Surplus for the year - - g7 97
Other comprehensive Income
Losses on movements in fair vatue of cash flow hedging derivatives - (73 - (73)
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income - 16 - 146
Total comprehensive (deficit)income - (57) g7 40
At 1 October 2011 01 (13 9) 236 S8
Comprehensive income
Surplus far the year - - 68 68
Other comprehensive iIncome
Gains on movements In fair value of cash flow hedging dervatives - 55 - 55
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive ncome - (17} - (17)
Total comprehensive ncome - 38 68 106
At 30 September 2012 01 (10 1) 304 204

The notes on pages 38 to 68 form part of these finanoal statements
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Statements of cash flows
For the year ended 30 September 2012

2012 2011 2012 2011
Group Group Company Company
Note £m £m £m Em
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/{used in) operations 26 1266 (292 9) {84 &) {478 5)
Interest {paid)/received (155 0) (1305) 14 8 175
Incermne tax (pad)/receved 130} (27 8) 13 26
Net cash used in operating activities (41 4) (4512) (68 3) {463 6)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired - (38) - (41}
Purchase of corporate property, plant and equipment and
Intangible assets (18 2) (73} - -
Proceeds from scle of corporote property, plant and equipment 05 04 - -
Net cash used n investing activities {17 7} (10 7} - (41)
Cash flows from financing activities
New loans raised 7516 7202 7516 7192
Bank leans repaid (625 4) (263 6) (622 0) (2550)
Net cash generated from financing activities 1262 456 6 1296 4642
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 671 (53) 613 (35)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (78) {25) 310 345
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at end of year 16 593 (78) 9213 310

The notes on pages 38 to 68 form part of these finanoial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General iInformation

Motability Operations Group plc 1s a company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom, whose shares are privately owned The
address of the registered office 15 City Gate House, 22 Southwark Bridge Rood, Lendon SE1 9HB The nature of the Company’s operations
and its principal activities are set out in the Directors’ report on pages 4 and 5

Motability Operations Group plc (‘the Company') and its subsidiaries will be referred to as ‘the Group’ In this report

These financial statements are presented in pounds Sterling because that 1s the currency of the pnmary economic environment iIn which
the Company operates

Accounhing convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the tustorical cost conventien, except the revaluation of financial assets and financial
liabilittes (including derivative instruments) which are valued at far volue through profit or ioss

2 Significant occounting policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Finencial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations endersed by the European Union (EU} and with those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to cornpanies reporting under IFRSs A summary of the more impertant cccounting policies is set out below,
together with an explanation of where changes have been made to previous policies on the adoption of new accounting standards 1n the year

The preparation of financial statements 1IN conformity with IFRSs requires the use of estmates and assumptiens that affect the reported
amounts of assets and labilities at the dote of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period Although these estimates are based on the Directors’ best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results
ultimately may differ from those estirmates The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 3

Except os described below, the accounung policies have been applied consistently to the years 2012 and 2011

Adoption of new or revised standards
The following new and revised standards and interpretatians have been adopted in these financial statements Their adoption has not had
any s:gnificant impact en the amounts reported

Amendments to [FRS 7 Financiol Instruments Disclosures
Amendments to [AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
1AS 24 {revised) Related Party Disclosures
Amendments to [AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting
Amendments to IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards, amendments and interpretations were in 1ssue but not
yet effective {ond In some cases had not been adopted by the EU) and have not been early adopted by the Group

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures

iIFRS 9 Financial Instruments

iFRS 10 Consohidated Finonoial Statements

[FRS 11 Jomt Arrangernents

[FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financigl Staternents
Amendment to 1AS 12 Income Taxes

Amendments to 1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Amendment to IAS 19 Employee Benefits

Amendment to 1AS 27 Consolidated ond Separote Financial Statements
IAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
Amendments to [AS 32 Fianaiol Instruments Presentation
Amendments to [AS 34 Interim Financiol Reporting

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards, amendments and interpretations in future periods will have no matenial effect
on the financial statements of the Group

Other standards, amendments ond interpretations not described above are not relevant to the Group
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2 Significant accounting policies continued

Going concermn

The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set out in the
Directors’ report on pages 8 to 17 The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing focilities are described in
the Finance Director's review on pages 18 to 19 In addition, Note 33 to the accounts includes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for
managing Its capital, its financial nsk management objectives, details of its finoncial instruments and hedging actmities, and its exposures to
credit, hquidity and foreign exchange risk

The Group has cons:derable financial resources together with o long-term contract with Motability to opercte the ‘Motability Scheme' As a
consequence, the Directors believe that the Group 1s well placed to manage its business risks

Aftar making enquiries, the Directars have a reasonable expectotion that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparnng the annual report
cnd accounts

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financiol statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
Its activities

The net assets and results of acquired businesses are mcluded in the consclidated financial statements from their respective dates
of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control

Allintra-Group transactions and balances are eliminated an consolidation

Investment in subsidianes
The Company's investments in its subsidiaries are stated at cost less any provision for iImpairment in the Parent Company’s batance sheet
Imparrment provisions are charged to the income staternent

Infangible assets

Intangible assets represent computer software costs In accordance with 1AS 38, computer software 1s capitalised on the basis of the
costs incurred to acquire and bnng into use the specific software and includes capitalised internal labour where appropriate These costs
are amortised on a straight-line basis over theirr estimated useful lives, between three and five years

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated ot histoncal cost less accumulated depreciabion and prowsion for any impairment in value Cost
includes the onginal purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset toits working condition for its intended use
The carrying values of all property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying value may not be recoverable

Depreciation 1s calculated to wnte down assets, on o straight-line basis, over the estimated useful life of the assets as follows

Motar vehicles Four years
Leasehold improvements Remaining term of lease
Fixtures, fittings and office equipment Three years

Assets held for use In operating leases

Assets leosed to customers, under agreements which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, are classified
as operating leases Operating lease assets are capitalised and depreciated on a straight-line basis over ther anticipated useful lives to
estimated residual values Estimated residual values are reviewed ot the balence sheet date against revised projections of used car prices
at the end of the lease term and the resulting changes of estimate are accounted for as a recalibration of depreciation for the year and
remaining lease term

inventones

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net reclisable value Costis the net carrying value of the operating lease assets, which were
previously held for use in operating leases and then become held for sale, as at the date of the transfer to inventory Net reolisable value 15
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable vanable seling expenses

Revenue recognimon
Rental revenue from operating leases 1s recognised on o straight-line basis over the lease term

Revenue comprises both odvance rentals paycble directly by lessees and penodic rentals receivabie from lessees by means of mandated
payments of the higher rate mobility component of the Disability Living Allowance or War Pensioners’ Mobility Supplement

Proceeds from disposal of operating lease assets are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the assets have
been transferred to the buyer

Deferred income — maintenance
Rental income in respect of vehicle maintenance 1s deferred to the extent that it relates to future maintenonce activities See note 19

Deferred income - vehicle condhion
Rental income 1s deferred on a straight-line basis over the ife of the lease to the extent that it 15 expected to be repaid to lessees for returning
leased assets in good condition See note 19

www motabilityoperations couk 3@



Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Significant accounting pohicies continued
Leasing obligations
The costs of operating leases are chorged to the income statement on @ straight-line basis

Net operating costs

Net operating costs comprise net boek value of disposed operating lease assets, depreciotion, insurance, maintenance, dealer supply and
service payments, roadside assistance and other Scheme-related costs including the Motability levy {see note 30} ond overheads An gnalysis
15 provided in note &

Overneads include the cost to the Group of the Directors’ long-term incentwes, recogrised on an accruals basis aver the period to which
the perfermance criteria relate, adjusted for changes in the probability of perfermance critena being met or conditional awards lapsing

Finance costs
Finance costs are recognised as an expense on an accruals basis, using the effective interest rate method

Retirement benefit costs
Company pension contributions are calculated as a fixed percentage of the pensionable saleries of eligible emptoyees These contrbubions
are charged in the penod to which the salary relates The Company pension scheme (s a defined contnbution scheme

Taxahon

Taxation on the surplus for the year compnses both current and deferred tax as well as adjustments in respect of prior yaars Taxation
15 charged or credited to the Income statement, except when it relates to tems charged or credited directly to equity, In which cose
the deferred tax s also included within equity

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the surplus for the peniod, using tax rates enacted or substantwvely enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax s recognised in respect of all temporary differences between the carrying value of assets and iiabilities for reporting purposes
and the amounts charged or credited for tax purposes Deferred tox 1s colculated at the rate of tax expected to apply when the liability 1s
settled or the asset 1s realised using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date A deferred tax asset 15 recogrised
only to the extent that it 15 probable that future taxable surplus will be ovallable against which the asset can be utilised

Provision for other habilihes
The Group is required to perform dilapidation repairs on leased properties prior to the properties being vacated at the end of therr
lease term Provision for such costs 1s mode where a legal obligation is identified and the liakility can be reasanably quantified

Share capital
Ordinary share capital s classified as equity The Group's preference shares ore classified as debt, with the associated dividend being
recognised on an amortised cost basis in the iIncome statement as a finance cost

Financial instruments

Financial assets and kabilities ore recogrised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes @ party to the contractual provisions

of the instrument Financial assets and labilities cornpnise trade and cther recewables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables,
hire purchase recewvabtes, debt, preference shares and denvative instruments

Foreign currency translation

Dunng the period, and in the previous period, the Compaony 1ssued fixed-rate Eurobonds and at the same time entered into cross-currency
interest rate swap arrangerments to hedge its foreign currency nsk The Company’s averall interest rate nsk manogement strategy 1s to
transform all new Issued foreign denorminoted debt into the Company’s functionat currency of Sterling

Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at rates of exchange prevailing ot the bolance
sheet date Foreign currency amounts are initially recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions Individual
transactions dencrminated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates payment takes
place Gains and losses ansing on retranslation are, with the exception of the effective portion of foreign exchange gains or losses on debt
instruments designated as hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge relationship, included 10 the Income statement for the period and are
classified as either operating or financing depending on the nature of the monetary item giing rise to them The Group hedged ol its foreign
currency risks on the Eurobonds and does not have any other manetary assets or labilities in foreign currencies

Financial assets

Trade and other recewvables

Trade and other receivables are non-dervative finanaal assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
They anise when the Group provides money, gocds ond services directly

Trade recevables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominat value, which approximates to the far volue becouse of therr short
maturnties, as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts

Hire purchase receivables
Under [AS 17, hire purchase agreements, which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the customner, are treated
in the same way as finance leases

Assets purchaosed by customers under hire purchase contracts are included i ‘ture purchase recervables’ at gross amount recewvable, less
unearned finance charges Finance income 1$ recogrised over the lease term using a net investment method so os to reflect a constant
penodic rate of return on the Group's net investrment in the controct Hire purchase recevoble balances atso include an allowance for
estimated irrecoverable amounts by reference to past default experience
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2 Significant accounting policies continued

Finanaial assets continued

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group, cash in the course of transmission and collection, and short-term bank deposits
with an onginal maturity of three months or less The carrying value of these assets approximates to their for value In the consolidated
bolance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings i current Labilities on the balonce sheet

Financial liabilifies including trade and cther payables

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recogrised when the Group has a present legal or constructive cbligation as aresult of a past event, it 1s
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation, and reliable estimates of
the amount of obligation can be made

Trade and cther payabtes are short-term financial labilities which de not carry any interest and are stated at nominal vatue, which
approximates to the farr value because of therr short matunties

Financial tabilities
Financial habilities are recognised initially ot fair volue, net of transaction costs They are subsequently held at amoertised cost Any difference
between the amount on initial recognition and the redemption value 1s recognised in the income statement using the effective interest methed

Short-term financial labilities, such as bank overdrafts, are measured at nominal velue, which approximates to the fair value because of their
short matunties

Dernvative financial mstruments
The Group enters into derivative financial instruments, comprnising interest rate and crass-currency swaps, to manage its exposures to intereast
rate and foreign exchange nsk Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note 22 te the financial statements

Denvatives are initially recognised at far value at the date o dervative contract 1s entered into, and are subseguently remeasured to thew fair
value at each balance sheet date The resulting gain or loss 1s recogrused in profit or less immediately unless the derivative 1s designated and
effective as o hedging nstrument, in which event the timing of the recognitien in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship

Hedge accounting
The Group designates hedging instruments, mainly interest rate and cross-currency swaps, as cash flow hedges Hedges of interest rate risk on
firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges

At the incepuon of the hedge relationship, the Group docurnents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, aleng
with its nsk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions Furthermoare, at the inception of the hedge
and cn an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether or not the hedging instrument that 1s used in a hedging relaticnship 1s effective In
offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item

Note 22 sets out details of the fair values of the denvative instruments used for hedging purposes Movernents in the far value reserve
(net of tax effects) are also detalled 1n the statement of changes In equity

Cash flow hedge
Changes in the fair value of the derivative financiol instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and the ineffective portron is recognised immediately in the iIncome statement

Amounts accurnulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the pericd when the hedged item s recognised in profit or loss The gain/loss
relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging vanable rate borrowings 1s recegnised In the ncome statement within finance
costs’ Any gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recogrised in the incame staterment as ‘other goins/({losses)’

Hedge gccounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated
or exeraised or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting Any cumulative gain or loss deferred in equity at that time remains 1n equity and
15 recogrused when the forecast transaction 1s ultmately recogrised in profit or loss When a forecast trensacbion 1s no longer expected

to oceur, the cumulative goin or loss that was deferred in equity 1s recognised immediately in profit or ioss
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Financial statements

Nates to the financial statements continued

3 Crhcal accounting jJudgements and key sources of estmahon uncertainty
In the application of the Group’s accounting potictes, which are described in note 2, the Directors are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical expenence and other factors that are considered to be relevant Actual
results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate 1s revised If the revision affects only that period or In the penod of the revision and future penods if the revision affects both
current and future periods

Cntical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

Residual values of operafing lease assets
The method by which the Directors have determined the Group's residual values of the operating lease assets 15 descnibed in note 13

Sensitivity analysis

Because of the inherent uncertainty associated with such valuation methodology and n particuler the volatility of the prices of second-hand
vehicles, the carrying value of the residual values of the operating lease assets may differ from therr realisable value (see note 13) As at

30 September 2012, if the future value of the net sale proceads for our existing portfolio of operating leases were to {decrease)/increase by
1% from our estimates (1% beng a reasonable, scalable base unit for mevements in the used car market), the effect would be to
{decrease)increase the depreciation on these vehicles by £38 9m (2011 £36 2m} This change in depreciation woutd be charged /credited to
depreciation expense on operating leases over the remaining terms of the operating legses so that the net investrment In operating leases at the
end of the legse term for these vehicles 1s equal to the revised expected residual value

4 Revenue
An analysis of the Group’s revenue Is provided below
2012 2011
£m £m
Rentals recevabie from operating leases 1,746 7 1,593 0
Proceeds from disposal of operating lease assets 1,367 8 1,258 4
Other income 65 11
Hire purchase earnings 46 72
Contingent rentals 05 05
Finance income 02 Q7
Total revenue 3,126 3 2,860 9

Contingent rentals relate to vanable charges for excess mileage
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5 Segmental analysis

The Motabtility Operations Group is managed as a single integrated business unit Accordingly no segmental analysis 1s applicable

6 Nel operating costs
An analysis of the Group’s net operating costs 1s provided below

2012 2011

Em £m

Net book value of disposed operating lease assets 1,296 2 1,2185
Fleet operating costs including insurance, maintenance and roadside assistance costs 4750 4092
Other operating costs 447 450
Employee costs 417 400
Other product costs including continuous mability costs, adaptations support, communications 242 218
Legal and professional fees 144 126G
Motability levy and rebates 102 73
Management fees 14 25
Bad debt charges and movement in bad debt provisions 13 76
Donatien to the Motabiity Tenth Anniversary Trust - 300
Net operating costs before depreciation 1,9091 1,794 8
Cepreciation on assets used in operating leases (*} 7875 6835
Depreciation, amortisation ond impairment of property, plant ond equipment and intangible assets 41 54
Net operating costs 2,7007 2,4837

(*) The depreciation charge on assets used in cperating leasing includes a £29 ém charge (2011 £21 4m retease) relating to the change in estimate during the

year of future residuat values (see note 13}

7 Audifors’ remuneration

2012 2011

Auditors’ rernuneration  Audit fees for Group and Parent Company financial statements £140,000 £140,000
Tetal audit fees £140,000 £140,000
Audit fees paid on behalf of subsidignies £90,000 £545,000

Audit-related assurance services £45,000 £45,000

Tax compliance services £0 £0

Tax adwisory services £0 £0

Internal qudit services £0 £0

Other assurance services £37,000 £35,000

Corporate finance services £0 £0

Total other fees payable to Auditors £172,000 £175,000
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8 Employee costs
The average monthly number of persons employed on g fult tme equivalent basis (including Executive Directors) was

Group

2012 2011
Administrative staff 762 734
2012 2011
£m frm
The breakdown of staff costs is as follows
Wages and salanies 344 334
Pensions and healthcare benefits 33 30
Social security costs 40 36
Total employee costs 417 400
9 Finance costs
2012 2011
£m £m
Interest and charges on bank loans and overdrafts 356 362
Interest on debt issued under the Euro Medium Term Note Programme 1296 1071
Preference dividends 07 07
Total finance costs 1659 1440
10 Taxoton
The major components of the Group tox expense are
2012 2011
£m £m
Current tax
Charge for the year 134 80
Total 134 80
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 520 557
Impact of change in UK tax rate (40 0) {36 4)
Total 120 193
Tox on surplus 254 2713

The tax on the Group's surplus before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tox rate opplicable

to surplus of the conseolidated entities as follows

2012 2011
£m £m
Surplus before taxation 2597 2332
Tax calculated ot appropriate tox rates applicable to surplus 650 630
Expenses not deductibte for tax purposes 04 07
Adjustment relating to pnor years deferred tox - on
Adjustments recagrised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior years - 01
Re-measurement of deferred tax due to change in the UK corporation tax rate (40 0) {36 4)
Total tax on surplus 254 273

The weighted average applicable tax rate s 25% (2011 27%)

An analysis of the tmpact of the change in UK tox rates s disclosed in note 24
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1 Infangible ossets

Group

Acquired

rights on

lease Computer

contracts softwore Total
Cost fm £m £m ‘
At 1 October 2010 - 76 76 !
Additions 14 25 39
Derecognition (14) - (14)
At 1 October 2011 - 101 101
Additions - 62 62
At 30 September 2012 - 163 163
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 Octeber 2010 - 42 42
Amortisation charge for the year - 25 25
Impairment charge for the year 14 - 14
Derecognition (14) - {14}
At 1 October 2011 - 67 67
Amartisation charge for the year - 18 18
At 30 September 2012 - 85 85
Carrying amount
At 1 October 2010 - 34 34
Additions 14 25 39 I
Amortisation - (2 5) (25}
Impairment (14) - (14}
At 1 October 2011 - 34 34
Additions - 672 62
Amortisation - (18) (18)
At 30 September 2012 - 78 78

The intangible assets relate to IT projects hald by the Company’s wholty-owned subsidiary Motability Operations Lirnited

Acquired nghts on lease centracts ansing from the acquisition of Route2mobility Limited held by the Company were derecognised in the year

ending 30 September 2011

At 30 September 2012, the Group had entered into contractual commitments in respect of capital expenditure on intangible assets amounting

to £mil (2011 £nil)
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12 Properly, plant and equipment

Group
Fixtures,
fittings and
Motor Leasehotd office
vehicles  improvements equipment Total
Cost £m £m £m Em
At 1 October 2010 17 54 61 132
Additions 0% 16 23 48
Acquisition of subsidiary 01 - 01 02
Disposals {08) - @1} 09
At 1 October 2011 1¢9 70 84 173
Additions o8 81 31 129
Disposals (08 - - {08)
At 30 September 2012 19 151 115 285
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 October 2010 c7 40 54 101
Charge for the year 04 04 07 15
Acquisition of subsidiary - - 01 01
Elminated on disposals (05) - 01) (0 6)
At 1 Cctober 2011 06 4t 61 111
Charge for the year 04 06 13 23
Elrminated on disposals {0 4} - - (0 4)
At 30 September 2012 06 50 74 130
Carrying amount
At 1 October 2010 10 14 o7 31
Additions 09 16 23 48
Acquisition of subsidiary 01 - - 01
Disposals (03} - - 03
Depreciation (0 4) (0 4} 0on {15}
At 1 October 2011 13 26 213 62
Additions 08 81 31 120
Disposals (0 4) - - (0 4)
Depreciation 04 (06) (13) 23
At 30 September 2012 13 101 41 155

At 30 September 2012, the Group hod entered into contractual comrmitments in respect of capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment
ameunting to £11 8m (2011 10 6m) These amounts relate to the premises improverment programme
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13 Assets held for use in operating leases

Group
Motor

vehicle assets
Cost £m
At 1 Qctober 2010 52261
Additions 2,6080
Acquisition of subsidiary 200
Transfer to inventory {1,813 4)
At 1 Octaber 2011 65,0407
Additions 2,4276
Transfer to inventory {1,844 3)
At 30 September 2012 6,624 0
Accumulated depreciction
At 1 October 2010 9600
Charge for the year 6835
Acquisibien of subsidiary 119
Eliminated on transfer to inventory (5913)
At 1 October 2011 1,064 1
Charge for the year 7875
Eliminated on transfer to inventory (5402)
At 30 September 2012 1,311 4
Carrying amount
At 1 QOctaber 2010 42661
Additions 2,6080
Acquisition of subsidiary 81
Depreciation {683 95)
Transfer te inventory (note 14) (1,222 1)
At 1 October 2011 49766
Additions 2,627 6
Depreciation (787 5)
Transfer to inventory (note 14) {1,304 1)
At 30 September 2012 53126

Residual values

Residual values represent the estimated net sale proceeds expected from the sale of the asset at the end of the leasing period A review Is
undertoken at the balance sheet date using market data to identify net residual values which differ from the sum anticipated at the inception
of the lease

In addition, the assets' resale market value and disposal costs structure are monitcred and the process of realising asset values 1s managed
In order to seek to maximise the net sale proceeds

The following residual volues are included 1n the calculation of the net book value of fixed assets held for use in operating leases

Years in which unguaranteed residual values are recovered

2012 2011

£m fm

No later than one year 1,142 5 9516
Later than one year and not later than two years 1,306 6 1,1347
Later than two years and net later thon five years 1,4453 1,5319
Total exposure 3,894 4 3,6182
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13 Assets held for use in operating leases continued

The total unguaranteed residual value exposure presented above consists of the onginal priced residuol values net of revisions in estimation
(see the ‘Cnitical accounting judgements’ policy in note 3) The amounts resulting from change in estimate on the live fleet at the balance

sheet date are detailed below, together with the timing of the effects on the income statement

Effects of changes in eshmates included in the unguaranteed residual values above

2012 2011

Em £m
Prior years {200 01
Current year {29 6) 214
Amounts carned at 30 September {49 6) 213
Amocunts to be charged in future years {72 1) (34 6}
Total effect of changes in estimated residua! value {121 7) {13 3)

The Group and Company as lessor

The future rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leoses with customers, calculated with reference to the relevent Disability

Allowances, for each of the following three peniods after the baolonce sheet date are

2012 2011 2012 2011

Group Group Company Company

£m £rn £m £rn

No later than cne year 1,429 1 1,178 2 - -

Later than one year and not later than two years 8485 7216 - -

Later than two years and not later than five years 3385 2766 - -

Total 26161 2,176 4 - -
14 Inventones

2012 2011 2012 2011

Group Group Company Company

£m £m £m £m

Ex-operating lease assets held for sale 689 610 - -

Provisions (05) (03) - -

Ex-operating lease assets held for sale {net) 68 4 607 - -

Inventories represent the cperating lease gssets previously held for rental to others and which cease to be rented and beceme held for sale

as of the balance sheet date As of the balance sheet date, £0 5m has been provided against irrecoverable vehicles (2011 £0 3m}

The cost of inventaries recognised as expense and included 1n net cperating costs omounted to £1,296 2m (2011 £1,218 5m)

The movements of the inventores in 2012 and 2011 are os follows

£m
At 1 Gctober 2010 57 &4
Transfer from operating lease assets (note 13) 12221
Disposals (1,218 5)
At 1 October 2011 610
Transfer from operating lease assets (note 13) 1,3C41
Disposals {1,296 2)
At 30 September 2012 689
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15 Investment in subsidianes

2012 2011
£m fm
Investments in subsidianies at 30 September 126 126

The Company’s subsidiaries are set out below

Proportion of all classes of
1ssued share copital cwned by

Directly owned the Company Principal activity
Motability Operations Limited 100% Operation of the Scheme
Motability Leasing Limited 100% Financing of Scheme contract hire agreements
Motability Hire Purchase Limited 100% Financing of Scheme hire purchase agreements
RouteZmobility Limited 100% Financing of Scheme powered wheelchair and scooter cgreements

Alt of the above subsidianies are incorporated in Great Britain The Directors consider the value of the investments to be supported by

underlying assets

Loans to other Group companies

2012 2011 012 2011

Group Group Company Company

£m fm £m £m

Motability Leasing Limited - - 3,3711 3,203 6
Motability Hire Purchase Limited - - 73 3240
Total - - 33784 3,2356
2012 2011 2012 201

Group Group Company Company

£fm fm £m £m

Loans to other Group comparias - current - - 43 4 404
Loans to other Group companigs - non-current - - 3,3350 3,1952
Total - - 3,378 4 3,2356

The loens to other Group companies de not have a defined matunity The current balance represents interest, charged on an arm’s length basis

16 Cash and bank balances

2012 2011 2012 2011

Group Group Company Company

£m fm £m £m

Cleared balances 955 323 9213 310
Cashin the course of collection 70 14 - -
Cash and bank balances 1025 337 923 310
2012 2011 2012 2011

Group Group Compaony Company

£m £m £m fm

Cleared balances - - - -
Cash in the course of transmission (43 2) (41 5) - -
Bank overdrafts (43 2) (415) - -

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or less

The carrying amount of these assets approxmate to therr fair volue

Fer the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are as follows

2012 2011 2012 2011

Group Group Company Company

£fm Em £m £m

Cash and benk balances 1025 337 923 310
Bank overdrafts {432} (415) - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 593 (7 8} 923 310
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17 Hire purchase receivables

2012 2011 2012 2011
Group Group Company Company
£m frn £m £m
Gross repayments receivable
No later than one year 187 271 - -
Later than one year and rot later than five years 246 44 8 - -
Total 433 719 - -
Unearned income recevable
No later than one year 27 (49) - -
Later than one year and not later than five years (20) (4 2) - -
Total (&7) (91) - -
Net total within one year 160 222 - -
Net total due in the second to fifth years inclusive 226 40 6 - -
Present value of mimimum hire purchase recewvables 386 62 8 - -

The average term of hire purchose agreements entered into 1s five years

Hire purchase receivable balances are secured over the venhicles subject ta hire purchase contracts The Group is not permitted to sell or re-pledge
the collateral in the absence of default by the customer

The interest rate inherent in hire purchase agreements Is fixed at the contract date The effective interest rote ranges between 8% ond 10%
per annurm, and reflects provision for early termination losses and other costs {2011 8% - 10%)

Hire purchase receivable balances include an allowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts of £0 1m {2011 £1 0m) This allowance has been
made by reference to past default experience There are no hire purchase recewables which are past due at the reporting date

The fair value of the hire purchase recevables as at 30 September 2012 (s estimated to be £38 7m (2011 £63 1m) using discount rates based
on the market rate for similar consurmer credit transactions

18 Trade and other receivables

2012 2011 2012 2011

Group Group Company Company

£m £m fm Em

Trade recevables 649 601 - -
Other recervables 636 69 2 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 1039 811 185 105
Total 232 4 210 4 185 105
Included in current assets 2189 2104 185 105
Included in non-current assets 135 - - -
Total 232 4 2104 185 105

Trade recevables include an allowance for estimated rrecoverable amounts of £4 2m (2011 £7 1m) This allowance has been made by
reference to past default experience The average receivable days period (s four days {2011 three days)

The Directors cansider that the carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value All balances are nen-interest
bearing and denorrinated in Sterling

The Group’s principal source of income 15 the Department for Work and Pensions through the assigned allowances recewable by customers
of the Group In effect the Income stream 1s sourced from the UK Government, hence credit sk 1s considered by the Directors to be very low
A small residual credit risk arises from miscellaneous customer billings, monies due from dealers, auction houses and vehicle manufacturers
The Group’s management carnes out regular credit assessments of the limits set for auction houses, manufacturers and dealers

Included in the Group’s trade recevable balance are recevables with a carrying value of £11 3m (2011 £1 4m) which are past due at the
reporting date The Group has not set aside provisions far these amounts as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered to be recoverable The Group does not hold any collaterat over these balances The avercge past due period of
these recewvables 1s nine days (2011 ten days)

Ageing of past due but not impaired recevables

2012 2011 2012 2011

Group Group Company Company

£m £m £m £m

Past due by 1-30 days 105 13 - -
Past due by 31-60 days 06 - - -
Past due by 61-90 days 01 01 - -
Past due by 91-120 days - - - -
Past due by more than 120 days 01 - - -
Total 113 14 - -
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19 Deferred Income

2012 2011 2012 2011

Group Group Company Company

Em im £m fm

Customers’ advance payments (*} 1227 101 4 - -
Vehicle maintenance income 205 137 - -
End of contract bonus income 353 313 - -
Total current 1785 1464 - -
Customers’ advance payments (* 997 1099 - -
Vehicle maintenance income 441 44 5 - -
End of contract bonus income 282 269 - -
Total nen-current 1720 1813 - -
Total 3505 3277 - -

{*} Custorners may choose a teased vehicle where the price exceeds the mobibty allowance In such cases they maoke an advance payment which 15 recognised

over the lfe of the lease

20 Trade and cother payables

2012 2011 2012 2011

Group Group Company Company

fm fm £m £m

Trade poyables 64 7 507 - -
Social security and other taxes 11 10 - -
Accruals 763 Th &4 - -
Other payables 09 21 1033 4286
Advance payments recewved from DWP 20 39 - -
Total 1450 1321 1033 426

Trade payables end occruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trode purchases and ongoing costs

The Group’s trade purchases are predominantly purchases of vehicles which are paid immedately The average credit penods taken for the

other frade purchases, mainly insurance premiums, are 30 days (2011 30 days}

The Directors consider thet the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value
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21 Finanaal labihihes

2012 2011 2012 2011
Group Group Company Company
£m £m £m £Em
Current
Accrued interest and coupon 46 4 352 46 4 352
Bank overdrafts 432 415 - -
Bank toans 01 35 - -
Total current B9 7 802 46 4 352
Non-current
Bank loans 4981 1,1201 4981 1,1200
Debt issued under the Euro Medium Term Note Programme
(less unamoertised discount and transaction costs) 2,763 7 2,063 7 2,763 7 2,0637
Preference shares 100 100 100 100
Total non-current 32718 3,1938 3,2718 3,1637
Total 3,3615 3,274 0 3,318 2 3,2289
The financial labilities are repoyable as follows
On demond nc later than ane year 897 802 46 4 352
Later than one year and ne later than two years - 1,120 1 - 1,120 0
Later than two years and no later than five years 9955 4866 995 5 4966
Later than five years 2,276 3 1,577 1 2,276 3 15771
Total 33615 3,2740 3,3182 3,2289

All borrowings are denominated in (or swopped into) Sterling

Bank borrowings
All bank borrowings as at 30 September 2012 and 2011 are ot floating rates

As at 30 September 2012 the Group has the following principal bank loans

a) A three-year term loan of £0 5 billion taken out on 19 January 2012 {2011 £1 billion five-year term loan taken out on 26 June 2008)
Loon repayment date 1s 19 January 2015

b) Five-year revolving credit facilities of £1 5 billion taken cut on 19 January 2012 {2011 £0 9 billion five-year revolving credit facility taken out
on 26 June 2008) of which £nil was drawn os at 30 September 2012 (2011 £120m} Facility repayment date 1s 19 January 2017

All bank borrowings carry LIBCR interest rates plus bank margins at a market rate

Debt 1ssued under the Eurc Medium Term Nofe Programme

The Company has a £4 bitlien Eura Medium Term Note Programme with denominations of GBP 50,000 The bonds were admitted to trading
en London Stock Exchange's regulated market and have been admitted to the Official List The £4 billion Euro Medium Term Note Programme
of the Company 15 unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed on a joint and several basis by three subsidiaries, namely Motability Operations
Limited, Motability Leesing Limited and Motability Hire Purchase Limited The payments of all amounts due in respect of notes will be
unconditionaily and rrevocably guaranteed on a Jjoint ond several basis by these companies

Durning the year, the Company issued two additional fixed-rate bonds under this progromme a Sterling bond with ¢ semi-annuat coupon of
4 375% and a nominal value of £300m, and o Euro-denominated bond with an ennuai coupon rate of 3 25% and a nominal value of €550m

Preference shares

Cumulative preference shares of £9,950,000 were 1ssued on 30 June 2008 at an issue price of £1 per share The shares carry interest at 7%
The preference shares of the Group are classified as a financial kability in occordance with the contractual obligation to delver cash

{both dvidends and repayment of principal) to the sharenolders on winding up gs stated in the Memorandum and Articles of Associotion
of the Company
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21 Fnancial labilihies continued

The weighted average interest rotes on borrowings as ot 30 September 2012 and 30 September 2011 were as follows

2012 2011 2012 2011

Graup Group Company Company

% % % %

Current bank loans and overdrafts 15 14 - -
Non-current bank loans 18 15 18 15
Non-current debt 1ssued under the Euro Mediurm Term Note Programme 50 54 50 54
Non-current preference shares 70 70 70 70

At 30 September 2012 and 30 September 2011, the Group had the following undrown committed borrowing facilities

2012 2011 2012 2011
Group Group Compony Company
£m £m £m £m

Working capital facility 1000 1000 95 o"’ 950"
Revolving credit facility 1,5000 7800 1,500 0 7800
Total 1,600 0 8800 1,595 0 8750

") Working caprital facilities of the Group ore cross guaranteed between Group comparves Motability Operations Limited and Motability Operations Group plc

Undrawn committed facilities expire s follows

2012 2011 2012 2011

Group Group Company Company

£m fm £m Em

No later than one year 50 50 - -

Later than one year and no loter than twe years - 7800 - 7800

Later than two years and ne later than five years 1,595 0 950 1,5950 950

Total 1,6000 8800 1,595 0 8750
The carrying amounts and fair value of the borrowings are as follows

2012 2012 2012 2012

Group Group Company Company

carrying fair carrying fair

amount value amount value

Em £m £m £m

Current financial habilities (including accrued interest and coupon) 897 837 46 &4 46 4

Non-current debt issued under the Euro Medium Term Note Programme (*} 27637 32142 2,7637 3,214 2

Non-current bank toans 4981 4981 4981 4981

Non-current preference shares 100 138 100 138

Total 33615 3,8158 3,3182 3,7725
{*} Amounts are shown net of unamortised discount, fee and transaction costs

2011 2011 2011 2011

Group Group Compeny Company

carrying far carrying fair

amount value amount value

£m Em £Em fm

Current financial habilities {including accrued interest and coupon) 802 802 352 352

Non-current debt issued under the Euro Medium Term Note Programme (*) 2,0637 2,2669 2,063 7 2,266 9

Non-current bank loans 1,1201 1,1201 1,1200 1,120¢

Non-current preference shares 100 131 100 131

Total 32740 3,4803 32289 3,4352

{*] Amounts are shown net of unamortised discount, fee and transaction costs

As at 30 September 2012, the farr value of current and non-current bank toans approximates to their carrying values, because all the bank
loans carry floating interest rates The fair value of preference shares for disclosure purposes 15 estimated by discounting the cash flows at
a discount rate which s derived from the yield curve at the balance sheet date The farr value of the debt issued under the Euro Medium Term

Nocte Pragramme for disclosure purposes 1s based on the market data at the balance sheet date
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22 Denvative finanaal instruments

Group 2012 Campany 2012

Notional Notional
Fair value amounts Fair value amounts
£m £m £m £m

Cosh flow hedges
Cross-currency swaps (62 4) 8850 {62 4) 8850
Interest rate swaps 086 4000 {06} 4000
Total {63 0) 1,2850 {630} 1,2850
Included n non-current habilities {62 4) 8850 {62 &4} 8850
Inctuded in current liabilities (0 6) 4000 (06} 4000
Dernvative financial instrument habilities {63 0) 1,2850 (630) 1,285 0

Group 2011 Company 2011

Notronal Notional
Far value omounts Fair value amounts
fm £m £m £m

Cash flow hedges
Cross-currency swaps (7 2) 4252 {72) 4252
Interest rate swaps (72) S000 {72) 9000
Total (14 4) 13252 (14 4) 1,3252
Included in non-current liabilittes {72) 4252 (72} 4252
Included in current iabilities {72) 9000 (72) 5000
Denvative finagnoial mmstrument habilitres {14 4) 1,3252 {14 4} 1,3252

Cross-currency swaps
On 29 Novermnber 2010, the Group 1ssued fixed-rate Eurcbonds under its Euro Medsum Term Note Programme at o norminal value of €500m

The Company entered INto Cross-currency swap arrangements to hedge (ts currency rate risk on this Eurobond debt The EUR coupon rate
of 3 75% 1s fully swapped into the GBP rate of 4 242%

On 8 February 2012, the Group 1ssued fixed-rate Eurobonds under its Euro Medim Term Note Pragramme at a neminal value of €550m
The Company entered into Cross-currency swap grrangements to hedge its currency rate risk on this Eurcbond debt The EUR coupon rate
of 3 25% 1s fully swopped into the GBP rate of 3 664%

Interest rate swaps

At 30 September 2012, the fixed interest rates vary from 0 699% to 0 745% (2011 the fixed interest rates vary from 1 52% to 2 45%) and
the main floating rates are LIBOR Gains and losses recognised in the fair value reserve in equity on interest rate swap contracts as

of 30 September 2012 will be continuously relegsed to the income staterment in accordance with the maturity of the swap controcts

The following table details the contractual matunty of the Group’s interest rate ond cross-currency swap habiities The undiscounted cash
flows gre settled on ¢ net basis

2012 2011 2012 2011
Group Group Company Company
£m fm £m £m
No later than one year {4 6) 192} {4 6} 92)
Later thon one year and no loter than two years (79 (42} {79} &2)
Later than two years and no later than five years (82) (42) (82) (62}
Later than five years 114 48 11 4 48
Total (9 3) (12 8) {(93) (12 8

Furiher details of derivative financial instruments are provided in note 33
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23 Provision for other liabilihes

Group

£m

At 1 October 2010 19
Additional provision in the year 02
At 1 October 2011 21
Additonal provision in the year -
At 30 September 2012 21
Included in current Liabilities 21
Included in non-current iabilities -
Total 21

The provision far other iabilities has been set up In respect of obligations ansing due to dilapidations payable at the end of operating legses on
the properties cccupied by the Group These provisions are expected to be fully utilised in the next financial year

24 Deferred tax

The following are the deferred tax iabiities and assets recognised by the Group and Company and movements thereon during the current
and prior reporuing periods

Short-tarm

Accelerated tax timing
deprecation differences Dernvotives Total
Group £Em £m Em £m
Net at 1 October 2010 4372 (13} (32} 4327
Chorge to iIncome 554 ¢3 - 557
{Credit)/charge to Income due ta change in UK tax rate (351) 01 - G350
Credit to equity - - (19 (19
Charge to equity due to change in UK tax rate - - 03 03
Acquisition of subsidiary 10 01 - 09
Adjustment in respect of prior periods 13 - - (13}
Net at 1 October 2011 4572 (10) (4 8) 4514
Charge to ncome 520 - - 520
(Credit)/charge to income due to change in UK tox rate (40 1) 01 - (400}
Charge to equity - - 15 15
Charge to equity due to change in UK tax rate - - 02 02
Net at 30 Septernber 2012 4691 )] 31 4651

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable night to offset current tax assets aganst current tax abilities
{as the deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal authority) The presentation of the deferred tax on the balance sheet 1s os follows,

2012 2011

£m £m
Deferred tax asset (58) (73}
Deferred tax labilities 4709 4587
Net at 30 September 4651 4514

Dunng the year, as a result of the ¢change in the UK corporation tax rate from 26% to 24% that was substantively enacted on 26 March 2012
(effective from 1 April 2012) and the subsequent change to 23% substantively enacted on 3 July 2012 {effective from 1 Apnl 2013} the
relevant deferred tax balonces have been re-measured

The Government has also anncunced its intention to reduce the man rate of corporation tax ta 22% by 2014/15, with the odditional 1%
reduction to be substantively enacted in summer 2013 Had this further change been substantively enacted before 30 September 2012,
a further £14 7m would have been credited to the tax charge for 2012
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24 Deferred tox continued

Short-term

Accelerated tax timing
depreciction differences Dervatives Total
Company £m £m £m £m
At 1 October 2010 - - 32 {32)
Charge to income - - - -
Credit to equity - - (19} {19)
Charge to equity due to change in UK tax rate - - 3 03
At 1 October 2011 - - (48 (4 8)
Charge to ncome - - - -
Charge to equity - - 15 15
Charge to equity due to change in UK tax rate - - 02 02
At 30 September 2012 - - (31 (31)

Deferred tax assets are recogrised for tox loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable surplus 1s probabte

25 Share capital
The Cormpany has one class of ordinary shares, which carry no nghts to ncome

2012 2011
Authorised
100,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each £100,000 £100,000
Issued and fully paid
50,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each (2011 50,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each) £50,000 £50,000

In accordance with the shareholders’ agreement, the erdinary shareholders will not procure a dividend and, in the event of g winding up,
all reserves surplus to the redeerming ordinary and preference share capital at par and cutstanding dividends on the preference shares
will be covenanted to Motability, the Chority

The Company has 10,900,000 authonised 7% redeemable cumulative preference shares of £1 eoch, classified as a liability, of which 9,950,000
are in 1ssue These shares do not carry votng nghts Further details are provided in note 21

26 Cash used in operations
Reconciliation of surplus to net cash flow frem operating actwities

2012 2011 2012 2011
Group Group Company {ompany
£m £m £m £m
Surplus before tax 2597 2332 68 g7
Adjustments for
Depreciation charge on corporate assets 41 54 - 15
Depreciation charge on operating lease assets 7875 6835 - -
[nventory write-down - - - -
Finance costs 1659 14640 (6 8) (112}
Gains on disposal of operating lease assets {71 6) (39 9) - -
Gains on disposal of corporate ossets 01 {02) - -
(Decrease)/increase In provisions (3 6) 23 - -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 1,141 9 1.028 3 - -
Purchose of assets held for use in operating leases (2,427 6) {2,608 0) - -
Proceeds from sale of assets held for use in operating ieases 1,367 8 1,258 4 - -
Decrease 1n hire purchaose receivables 249 140 - -
(Encrease}/decrease in other recevables (15 8) (637 {53) 13
Increase in loans to and investment in subsidiaries - - (139 8) (470 2)
Increase in deferred income 228 i3 - -
Increase/(decrease) in payables 126 4590 607 96
Cash generated from/(used In) operations 126 6 {292 9) (84 4) {478 5)
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27 Analysis of changes in net debt

At At
1 October Cash Non-cash 30 September
2011 flows flows 2012
Group £m £m £m £m
Cesh and bank balances 337 688 - 1025
Borrowings due within one year (80 2 04 (39 (897
Borrowings due ofter one yeor (1,120 1) 6254 (3 4) {498 1)
Debt 1ssued under the Euro Medium Term Note Programme due after one year {2,063 7) (7516) 516 (2,763 7)
Preference shares {100) - - {100)
Total (3,240 3) (570} 383 (3,259 0)
At At
1 Qctober Cash Non-cash 30 September
2010 flows flows 2011
Em Em £m £m
Cash and bank balances 346 09 - 337
Borrowings due within one yeor {53 &) (16} (252} (802)
Borrowings due after one year (1,3750) 25479 - (1,1201)
Debt 1ssued under the Eurg Medium Term Note Progromme due after one year (1,3383) (719 2) {62} (2,063 7}
Preference shares (100) - - (100}
Total (2,762 1) {466 8) {314) (3,240 3)
28 Operating leose arrangements
The Group as lessee
2012 2011
Group Group
£m £m
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recogrused in the
Income statement In the year 28 32

At the balance sheet dote, the Group had outstanding commitments for future min:mum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases which fall due gs follows

2012 2011

Group Group

£m £m

No later than one year 17 30
Later thon cne year and no later than five years 133 119
Later than five years 254 245
Total 40 & 394

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for use of office properties Leases are negotiated for an averege term af

nine years and rentals fixed for an average of three years

29 Retirement benefit schemes

The Motability Operations Limited pension plan 1s a nen-contributory group personal pension {money purchasa) scheme The charge for
the year to 30 September 2012 amounted to £2,754,457 (2011 £2,522,816) Net contributions due at the bolance sheet date were £2,587

{2011 £8,114)
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30 Related parties

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consclidation and are not
disclosed in this note {see note 15 for the details of the intercompany iransactions) The Graup’s corporate and finance structures are set
cutin the Finance Director’s review on pages 18 and 19

Related parties comprise Directors (and therr close families and service companies}, the Motability Charity {and its related chanty the Motability
Tenth Anruversary Trust Limited) and the shareholder banks Transactions entered into with related parties are in the normal course of
busingss and on an ‘arms length’ basis

The relationship of the Company to the Motabiity Charity 1s set out in the Business overview

Transactions
Dunng the year Motabiity choritable grants totaling £23 7rm (2011 £20 5m) were owarded to customners and paid to the Group to enable vehicles
to be purchased on their behalf The Group also paid £6 7m (2011 £5 4m) relating to Motability administration costs (the ‘Motability levy’)

A further £2 9m (2011 £2 Sm) was paid as rebates in respect of grant awords towards advance payrments where customers terminated their
hire agreements and rebates in respect of grants made where the Greup-managed odeptotions could not be processed

In addition, £3 5m (2011 £1 8m} was pad as o rebate negotiated with Motability which effectively removes the risk pncing from vehicles
acquired with charitable grants, and wheelchair accessible vehicles £5,113 {2011 £4,285) was donated to Motability’s chantable funds during
the year

The funding of the Group and the Company through bank loans 1s provided by the shareholder banks on commercial terms as detailed in note
21 (see note S for details of finencing costs an bank loans, £0 1m (2011 £0 2m) of bank charges were also paid during the year) Additionally,
total fees of £1 4m (2011 £2 5m) were due to the shareholder banks in proportion to therr shareheldings for management services The
reduction this year 15 because the banks have chosen to waive the advisory element of therr fees

Dunng the year the Group made a denation of £l (2011 £30rm) to The Motability Tenth Anniversary Trust Limited The principal objective of
the Tenth Anmiversary Trust is to promote and support the cbjectives of Motability by making grants and investing in research and specigl
projects to foctitate mobility needs

Remuneration of key manaogement personnel
The remuneration of the key management personnel who are the Directors of the Group 1s set out below In aggregate for each of the
categones specified in 1AS 24, ‘Related Party Disclosures’

2012 2011

Em £m

Short-term employee benefits 31 29
Post-employment benefits 01 02
Other long-term benefits 23 22
Total 55 53
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31 Directors’ remuneration

During the year there were five Directors {2011 five) accruing benefits under money purchase pension schemes as well as receving payments
in leu of pension The Chairman makes separate provision for pension from his aggregate emoluments

2012 2011
Chairman
Salary £174,500 £170,000
Benefits £19,307 £18,535
Aggregate emoluments In respect of gualifying services £193,807 £188,515
Pension contributions under money purchase pension schemes £nil £nil
2012 2011
Highest-paid Director
Salary £487,525 £475,000
Performance related payments £237,500 £237,500
Payments in lieu of pension (*) £96,881 £48,958
Benefits £24,295 £23,394
Aggregate emoluments in respect of qualifying services £846,201 £784,852
Pension contributions under money purchase pension schemes £25,000 £69,792
All Directors
Solary £1,950,157 £1,900,000
Performance related payments £765,000 £765,000
Poymentsin kew of pension (1) £263,331 £151,923
Benefits £109,800 £115,871
Agaregate emoluments n respect of qualifying services £3,088,288 £2,932,794
Pension contributions under money purchase pension schemes £128,296 £214,792

{*} Payments in leu of pension amounts relate to emoluments where the Remuneration Cornrmittee have agreed that Directors can opt to take taxable income
instead of pension contribution entitlernents under maney purchose schemes

Long-Term Incentives
In addtion to the above, Motability Operations Group pic operatas long-term incentwe arrangements

Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP) A

Until the financial year ended 30 September 2008, the Executive Directors were able to nvest g proportion of any awarded bonus inte a Long-Term
Incentwe Plan This plan was introduced to provide o retention mechanism for key senior individuals and to recognise the importance of long-term
strategic objectives as well as short-term geals The Company's ewnership structure precluded the adoption of conventional long-terrn incentive
schemes {principally share optron schemes), so LTIP A was introduced as a cash-based scheme under which Directars could elect to deposit up to
50% of any awarded {and accounted} annual performance-related pay into a fund At the discretion of the Remuneration Committee this fund can
then be uplifted in each subsequent year on a basis linked to iIndwidual performance Subject to satisfoctory business and individual performance,
this accumulated fund would then be released on the third annversary of the deposit This LTIP A 1s now closed and the lost releoses were in
December 2010

During the year to 30 September 2012, there was nothing remaining to be released of LTIP A (2011 £504,010 was released, including
£274,219 in respect of the highest-paid Director)
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31 Directors’ remuneration continued

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) B

Following the restructunng of the business in June 2008, a revised Long-Term [ncentive Plan was introduced for the Executive Directers The
new plan, effective from 1 October 2008, focuses on ensuring that any reward 1s inked to measureable long-term objectives As 1s the case for
the original LTIP A, due to the ownership structure of the business, the use of shares or share options 1s precluded However, the new LTIP B
specifically inks any future cash payout with measures of sustained perfermance aligned to the Company's strategic cbjectives LTIP B also
takes into account external factors such as the credit rating of the business and 1s consistent with Financiol Services Authority principles

in respect of long-term incentives, with performence critenta designed so that units allocated inta the plan can both increase and decrease

In value The main features of LTIP 8 are as follows

+ The Remuneration Committee determines annually, on a discretionary basis, whether LTIP B units should be allocated to any Director
The notional initial velue of an allocated unit 1s £1,000, with the accumulated value varying (up or down) (0 subsequent years

+ Potentia! payouts are deferred for three years

+ The value of any potential payout 1s determined by annual assessment cganst specfic performance requirements in respect of level
of customer service, financial reserves edequacy and business culture

« Potental payouts are also impacted by movements in the Company's credit rating

On the third anniversary of the initial allocation of units into the plan, the accumulated units can be converted into cash and released During
the reported year to 30 September 2012, in eggregate an allecation of 550 units was made into the plan These units will not become aligible
for possible cash conversion until 2014 (2011 575 units eligible for release in 2013) Inthe annual accounts as ot September 2011, the 2011
allecation was incorrectly stated as 550 units and should have read 575 urits as stated above

During the year to 30 September 2012, in aggregate £1,922,075 of LTIP B was released, including £570,913 in respect of the highest-paid
Derector (2011 nil}

Long-Term Incentive Scheme {LTIS})
A LTIS for the Chief Executive Officer was introduced effective from 1 October 2010 As regards any future value, the scheme murrors the LTIPB
except in the following respects

» Any value attaching to urits atlocated at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee to be paid, subject to continued satisfactory
performance and continuing emplayment, only after the fifth anniversary of the initial allocation and after cudit sign off of the Annual
Accounts for the year ended September 2015

» The CEC can elect at the paint of cllocation that the value of any units be relecsed in five years at the neminal allocation value, thereby
forgoing any potential value enhancement but alse avoiding the prospect of units having no value Alternatively the CEO can elect thot
any allocated units be subject to the same valuation critenon s those applying to LTIP 8 Thet is, the value of any potential payout 1s
determined by annual assessment against specific performence requirements in respect of level of customer service, financial reserves
adequacy and business culture Also, any payout will be impacted by any movements 1n the Cempany’s credit rating

» Further gllocatiens may be made at the discretion of the Remuneration Commuttee in 2013 but there s no opportunity for cllecations
In 2014 and 2015

» The CEO has elected that any value gttaching to further allocations be determined by reference to the same cntena as those applying
toLTIPB

Durning the reported year to 30 September 2012, an initial allecation of 87 urits (2011 72 units), each with a norminai value of £1,000, was
made The CEC has etected that these units be subject to the same valuation cnteria as those applying to LTIP B These allocated units will
not become eligible for possible cash conversion untl late 2015

32 Events after the reporting pericd

There have been no events ansing after the reporting date that require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements for the year
ended 30 September 2012
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33 Funding and finanaial nsk management

Capital nsk management

The capital structure of the Group and the Company consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 21, net of cash and
cosh eguivalents ond equity capital For copitol nsk management purposes the equity capital consists of equity share capital, preference share
capital and restricted reserves The hedging reserve relating to the fair value of sweps 1s excluded

The Group's debt funding 1s provided through the Company via bank loans ond debt 1ssuance

The objective of the Group’s capital and reserves management policy (s to ensure that the Group maintains adequate levels of equity capital
and reserves to

+ Maintain the sustainability and longewvity of the business through having adequate reserves to withstand the impact of potential
macroecenomic, industry ond company specific shock events

+ Provide relative stability of pricing and affordabnlity to customers
» Provide confidence to lenders and credit rating ogencies that ollows the Group to raise sufficient funding at competitive rates

As part of the capital and reserves management policy of the Group, any surpluses that anse in the Group are reinvested back into the
Scheme for the benefit of disabled customers The Banks os owners of the Group connot access reserves (the ordinary shares do not carry
any entitlement for dividend)

The Risk Management Committee reviews the copital structure and partrculorly the level of restnicted reserves on a regular basis The Group
operates an Econemic Copital methodology to determine the level of capital required in the business In caleulating the Econormic Copital
Regqurement, o comprehensive assessment of maotenal nisks ond potential impacts 1s undertaken The Econormc Capital model is penodically
refreshed to reflect changes to the risk profile

The policy of the Greup 15 to seek to manage reserves within o target operating corrtdor between 100% and 130% of the Economic Capital
Requirement The actual capital and the Econormic Capital Requirement corndor at the year end are as follows

2012 2011

£m £Em

Actual capital (restricted reserves and equity share capital) 1,414 1,180
Ecanomic Capital Requirement corndor {100% - 130%) 1,204 - 1,565 986 - 1,282

The Group 15 not subject to externaily imposed regulatory capital requirements

The Group’s debt financing {bank loans) 1s subject to a customary loan covenant whereby the total Group assets total net debt ratio 1s
targeted to be no less than 1 25 1 At 30 September 2012 the ratio was 1 71 1, and the Group has complied with the terms of the covenant
throughout the period The covenant rotio 18 reported on a monthly bosis and reviewed by the Directors to ensure there 15 no breach of the
covenant and to take appropriate action if necessary

From the perspective of the Company, capital nsk management is Integrated with the capital nsk management of the Group and 1s not
managed separately

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted in respect of each class of financal asset, financial liability and equity
instrument, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which incorne and expenses are recognised,
are disclosed in note 2 to the financial stotements

Categornies of finanaal nstruments

2012 2011 2012 2011
Group Group Company Company
caryingvolue  corryingvalue  carrying value  carrying value
£m fm £m £m
Non-derivative financiol assets
Hire purchase receivables 386 628 - -
Trade and other receivables 650 605 - -
Loans to other Group companses - - 3,378 4 3,2356
Cash and bank balances 1025 337 9213 310
Totol non-dervative financial assets 2061 1570 34707 3,2666
Nen-denvative financral llabilities
Trade ond other payables (1450) (1321} (1033) (42 6)
Fingncial liabilities (3,361 5} {3,274 0) {3,318 2) (3,228 9)
Total non-dervative financiel labilities {3,506 5) {3,406 1) {3,421 5) (3,271%)
Net non-denvative financial instruments {3,300 4) {3,249 1} 492 {49)
Dervative finoncial instruments
Interest rate swaps {08) {72) 06) {72)
Cross-currency Swaps {62 4) (72) {62 4) (72)
Totol dervative financial mstruments {630) (14 4) {63 0) {14 4)
Total financial instruments {3,363 4) {3,263 9) {13 8) {13 3)
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33 Funding and financial nsk management continued
Fair value of financial instruments

2012 2012 2011 2011
Group Group Group Group
carrying value farvalue  corrying vatue farr value
£m £m £m £m
Caosh and bank balances I 1025 1025 337 337
Trade and other receivables I 650 650 605 605
Hire purchase recevables - current 31 160 168 222 235
Hire purchase receivables - non-current m 226 219 406 396
Trade and other payables - current 11 (145 0} {145 0) (132 1) (132 1)
Bank loans inctuding bank averdrafts - current v (89 7} 897 (80 2) (80 2)
Bank loons - non-current v {498 1) (498 1) {1,120 1) {1,120 1)
Debt issued under the Euro Medium Term Note Programme (*) 11 {2,763 7} (3,214 2) (2,063 7) {2,266 9)
Redeemable preference share habilities 111 (100} (13 8) (100) (13 1)
Net non-derivative financial instruments {3,300 &) (3,754 6) {3,249 1) {3,455 1}
Interest rgte swop - cash flow hedge (06} (0 6) (72) (72)
Cross-currency swap - cash flow hedge (62 4) (62 4) (72) (72}
Total {3,363 4) {3,817 6) {3,263 5) (3,469 5)
(*) Amounts are shown net of unamortised discount, fee and transaction costs
1 Interest beonng portion of the cash and cash equivalents consists of overright deposits
11 Non-interest bearing
HI Bearing interest at fixed rate
[V Bearing interest at floating rate
2012 2012 2011 2011
Lompany Company Company Company
carrying value far value  carrying volue far volue
£m fm £m £m
Cash and tank balances 1 9213 923 310 310
Loans to other Group companies v 3,378 4 33784 3,2356 3,395 4
Trade ond other payables - current Il {103 3) (103 3} {42 6) {42 6)
Financial habiities - current v (46 4) (46 4) (35 2) (35 2)
Bank loans - non-current v {498 1) (498 1) (1,1200) {1,120 0)
Debt 1ssued under the Euro Medium Term Note Programme {*) 111 (2,763 7) (3,214 2) (2,063 7) {2,266 9)
Redeernable preference share lichilities 111 (100} {13 8) {100) (13 1)
Net non-derivative finanaial instruments 4972 (405 1) {49) (51 4)
Interest rate swap - cash flow hedge (06) e {72 (72)
Cross-currency swap - cash flow hedge (62 4) {62 &) {72) (72)
Total (13 8) (468 1) {19 3) (65 8)

(*} Amounts are shown net of unamortised discount, fee and transaction costs

[ Interest beanng partion of the cash and cash equivalents consists of overnight deposits
IT  Non-interest bearing

111 Beanng interest at fixed rate

IV Bearing interest at floating rate

The fair value of financiol instruments traded m active markets 1s based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date The fair value
of financial instruments that are not traded in active markets 15 determined by using valuation techniques The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values of the financial mstruments for disclosure purposes

= The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates to the carrying amount due to its short-term nature

» The carrying values less impairment provision of trode and other recevables and poyaobles are assumed to approximate to therr foir values
due ta the short-term nature of the trade recevables and payables

* The hire purchase recevables are interest bearing ond the inherent interest rate is fixed at the contract date The farr value of
hire purchase recewvables for disclosure purposes 15 estimated by o discount rate based on the market rate for similar consurmer
credit transactions

« The fair value of preference shares for disctosure purposes 15 estimated by discounting the cosh flows using market data ot the bolance
sheet daote

« The farr value of debt 1ssued under the Euro Medium Term Note Progromme for disclosure purposes s based on market doto at the bolance
sheet date

» The {oir value of swaps 15 deterrmmed by discounting future cash flows using current market dota ot the balance sheet date
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33 Funding and financial nsk management conhinued

Farr value of financial instruments continued

With effect from 1 January 2009, the Group and the Company adepted the amendments ta IFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured
in the balance sheet at fair value, this requires disclosure of fair value measurements using the following hierarchy

» Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for dentical assets or labilities (levet 1}

* Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the ossets or liobility, either directly (that 1s, as prices) or
indirectly (that 1s, derived from prices) {level 2}

= Inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on chservable market data (that 1s, unobservabie inputs) {level 3)

The cnly financiol instruments of the Group and the Company that are measured subsequent to imitial recegmition at fair value are interest
rate and cross-currency swaps, grouped into level 2

Financial nsk management objectives
The Group's funding and financiel nsk 1s overseen and mangged by the Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Group’s treasury function, operating under the controt of the Asset and Liability Management Committee, monitors and manages the
financial nsks relating to the funding and treasury operations, as well as co-ordincting access to the financicl markets The Treasury Policy of
the Group and the principles set out by the Policy are endorsed by the Board and applied through detegoted authornty to the Chief Executive
Officer operating through the Executive Commuttee and the Asset ond Liability Management Cormmuttee The Treasury Policy and treasury
cantrol framework are overseen by the Audit Committeg

The risks of the Group ansing from its funding activiies include interest rate nisk, foreign exchange nsk, credit risk and liquidity nisk The Group’s
activites expose It pnimarily te the financicl nsks of changes in interest rates The Group enters into interest rate sweps and ssues fixed rate
bonds to mitigate the risk of movements in interest rates The Group does not enter into or trade financial Instruments, Including derivative
financiol instruments, for speculative purposes

The Group's debt funding I1s prowvided through the Company wia bonk loans and capital markets issuance As with the capital sk management,
the overall funding ond financiol nsk management of the Cormpany 18 iIntegrated with the funding and financial nsk management of the Group
and I1s not mangged separately As with the Group, the Company’s operations expose it to a variety of finanoal risks that include interest rate
risk, credit nsk and iquidity nsk The Company’s exposure to these risks 1s disclosed separotely in the retated sections below

Interest rate nsk management

The Group's revenues arise primarily frorn operating lease rentols, proceeds from disposal of operating lease assets and hire purchase
repayments that are fixed for the pencd of the contract - typically three years for an opercting lease contract Apart from fixed rate bonds
1ssued under the EMTN programme, the Group and the Company’s borrowings are subject to floating interest rates Borrowings arranged

at fieating rates of interest expese the Group and Cempany to cash flaw interest rote nsk, whereas those arranged at fixed rates of interest
expose the Group cnd Company to farr value interest rote risk

The Group and the Company seek to minimise cash flow interest rate risk by entenng into fixed interest rate swaps to hedge flooting rate
borrowings Interest rate swaps ore emnployed to fix the interest rate profile of the borrowings and align these borrowings to the repayment
profile of the ossets To the extent that borrowings ot the balance sheet date will be used to fund new assets purchased durnng the year,
the rentals will be set to reflect interest rates at the time the asset will be purchased The Group's policy 1s that at least 0% of the total
borrowings should be fixed in nature except where specific short-term dispensations are permitted (and commensurate with the overall
funding policy) The Group only hedges the vanable rate term borrowings, variable rate warking capital facilities are not hedged

Floating rate debt substanually swapped into fixed interest rates has a carrying volue as at 30 September 2012 of £498m {2011 £1,120m)
Notes issued subject to fixed interest rates have a carrying value as at 30 September 2012 of £2,764m (2011 £2,064m)

The Group and the Company hove interest rate swaps of £400m maturing over the next year (2011 £900m, maturing over the next year)
Under these swaps the Group and the Company pay an average fixed rate of 0 73% (2011 2 18%)

Funding derived from bonds 1ssuance has increased duning the yeor Two bonds have been issued, one in Sterling for o neminal amount
of £300m {matuning in 2027) and one i Euros for a nominol amount of €550m (maturing n 2018)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group 15 exposed to foreign exchange risk due to the i1ssue of Euro-denominated fixed-rate bonds Thus nsk has been managed by use
of a cross-currency swap to fix the exchange rate on alt caupon and principel cash flows from the outset of the bond In the event of any
change in foreign exchange rates, there would be no matenal effect on the reserves of the Group and the Company

Interest rate sensifivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis stated below 1s bosed on exposure te interest rates for both denvatives and non-dervative instruments at the balance
sheet date For fleating rate habilities, the analysis 1s prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year

In the event of any change in interest rates, there would be no matenal effect on the reserves of the Group and the Company Although an
ingrease in interest rates will lead to changes in interest payable on borrowings, this will be offset by a corresponding effect n ether interest
rate swaps or rental increases on new assets purchased during the year

If average interest rates had been 1% higher and all other vanables were held constant, this would have resulted, over o penod of one year, in
a pre-tax surplus decrease of opproximately £1 7m as at 30 Septernber 2012 (2011 £1 5m) 1% 15 used to measure the sensitivity of average
interest rates as 1t 1s an easily scatable base unit for readers to evaluate the impact on the Group of vanious changes in interest rates
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33 Funding and financial nsk management continued
Interest rate swop contracls

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group and the Company agree to exchange the difference between fixed and floating interest
amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts Such contracts enable the Group and the Company to mitigate the nsk of changing
interest rates on future cash flows on the vanable rate debt held The fair vatue of interest rate swaps at the reporting date 1s determined by
discounting the future cash flows using a GBP market yield curve, the results are disclosed below The average interest rate 1s based on the

outstanding balances at the end of the financial yeor

All iInterest rate swap contracts are designated os cash flow hedges in order to reduce the Group and the Company's cash flow exposure
resutting from varnigble interest rates on borrowings Interest rate swaps and fteating rate borrowings re-fix and settte on the same day each
manth thereby minimising interest rate exposure further Interest rate swaps settle net on a monthly basss

The following table details the notional principal amounts and average interest rate of the swap contracts outstanding at the reporting date

2012 2011 2012 2011

Average Averoge Nominal Norminal
contract fixed  contract fixed principal principol 2012 2011
Interest rate interest rate amount amaount Fair value Far value
% % £m £m fm Em
No later than one year 073 218 4000 3000 {08) {72
Later than one year and no later than two years - - - - - -
Later than two years and no loter than five years - - - - - -
Later than five years - - - - - -
Total 4000 S000 {0 6) (72}

Cross-currency swap contract

Under the cross-currency swap contract, the Group and the Company ogree to exchange Euro and Sterling amounts of the principal and fixed
interest amounts calculated on the principal This contract enables the Group and the Company to eliminate the nisk of changing exchange
rates on future cash flows on the foreign currency debt issued The farr value of the cross-currency swap at the reporting date 15 deterrmined

by discounting the future cash flows using foreign currency spot rates, the results are disclosed below

The cross-currency swap contract 1s designated as a cosh flow hedge and reduces the Group and the Company’s cash flow exposure resulting
from vanable exchange rates on borrowings The cross-currency swap elimmnates all exchange rate risk by settling on the same day os foreign

currency labilities

The following table details the notionat principal amount and average interest rate of the swap contract outstonding at the reporting dote

2012 2011 2012 2011

Contract fixed  Contract fixed Norninal Norminal
GBP interest GBP interest principal prinaipal 2012 2011
rate rate amount amount, Far value Fair value
% % £m £m £m £m
No later than one year - - - - - -
Later than one year cnd no later than two years - - - - - -
Later than two yeors and no later than five years - - - - - -
Later than five years 394 424 B850 4252 (62 4) (72)
Total 8850 4252 {62 4) (72)
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33 Funding and financial nsk management continved

Credit nsk management

Credit nsk s managed using an estabhshed process encompassing credit irmits, credit approvals, control of exposures and the momitonng and
reporiing of exposures Credit risk may orise from cash and cash equivalents, derivative fingncial instruments and deposits with banks and
financial institutions, as well as from credit exposures to customers

The Group’s principal source of income 1s the Department for Wark and Pensions, through the assigned allowances receved by customers

of the Group, ond therefore the credit risk 1s considered to be very low A small residual credit nisk anses from miscellaneous customer billings,
monies due from dealers, suction houses and vehicte manufacturers Group management regularly carnes out credit assessments of the limits
set for auction houses, manufacturers and dealers

For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated institutions with @ minimum ‘A’ rating are accepted All new proposed
counterporties are subject to internal credit approval and Asset and Liability Management Commuttee ratification prior to entering into any
transaction Credit hmits are set by the treosury function and are subject to approval by the Asset end Liability Management Committee

For the year under review the following figures represent the Group’s and the Company's fotal counterparty credit limit, the highest utiisation
durning the year and the batance as at 30 Septermber 2012 and 2011 attnbutable to banks/financiol institutions

Balance Balance

2012 os at 2011 asat

2012 Moximum 30 September 2011 Maximum 30 September

Total limit utilisation 2012 Total imit utibsation 2011

Em £m £m fm Em fm

Counterparty credit imit 2000 147 6 1087 1600 3169 425

No credit imits were exceeded duning the reportng peried ond management does not expect any losses from non-performance by these
counterparties Dunng 2011 the credit imits were temporanly incregsed to £400m to accommodate temporary surplus iquidity ansing from
the Novernber 2010 bond 1ssues

The carrying amount of financial ossets recorded in the financial statements, which s net of Impairment losses, represents the Group's and the
Company’s moximum exposure to credit nsk The it and utilisation calculations consist of monies on deposii, asset far value of denvatives
and a calculated facility utilisation in respect of the nterest rate swap notional principal amounts

Liquidity nsk management

The Group and the Company are exposed to changes in market conditions which in turn, and over time, could affect the provision of debt
avallable to the Group

Ultimate responsibility for iquidity nsk management rests with the Board of Directors The treasury policy has an appropriate hquidity risk
manogement framework for the management of the Group and the Company's short-, medium- and long-term funding

The Group policy for managing iquidity nsk is to maintain undrawn headroorn on its committed banking faclities of ot least 20% of barrowings
plus one year's projected funding growth The Group has a three-year bank term loan with 2 3 years until matunty and a five-year revolving
credit facility with 4 3 years until matunty The Group has further increased the average maturity profile of the debt by 1ssuing fixed rote bonds
The bonds, with average motunities of nine years, provide incregsed sustainability and diversity to the Group's funding profile

The Group continuousty monitors forecast and actual cash flows Included in note 21 1s a descniption of additional undrawn facilities that
the Group has at its disposal

The following tables detail the contractual matunty of the Group and the Company’s non-denvative financit labilities The table hos been
drawn up based an the undiscounted omounts of the financiat labilities based on the earliest dates on which the Group and the Company
can be required to discharge those lisbilities The table includes habilities for both principal and interest

Group
2012
Weighted 2012 mz2
average 2012 Between 1-3 Between 3-5 2012 2012
interest rote Under 1 year years yeurs Over 5 years Total
% Em £m im £m £m

Financial liabilities - bank loans - vanable

interest rate 183 (91) {5120} - - {521 1)
Financial liabilities - debt 1ssued under the Euro

Medium Term Note Programme - fixed

Interest rate 502 (142 4) {284 8) (7589) (2,903 9) (4,090 0)
Financial kabiliies - bank overdrafts and

short-term borrowings 150 (432) - - - (432)
Financial habibities - redeemable preference

shares - fixed interest rate (*) 70 7 (14) {14} (113) (14 8)
Trade and other payables - non-interest bearing - (145 0) - - - (145 Q)
Total (340 4) (798 2} {7603} {2,915 2) (4,814 1)

{*) The preference shares are classified as o fingnaial lability In accordance with the contrectual obligation to deliver cash (both dvidends and repayment of
principal) to the sharehalders on winding up, os stated in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
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33 Funding and financial nsk management continued
biquidity nsk management continued

Group
2011
Weighted 2011 2011
average 2011 Between 1-3 Between 3-5 2011 2011
Interest rote Under 1 year years years Over 5 years Totol
% Em fm £m £m £m
Financial babibities - bank loans - vanable
Interest rote 155 (207) (1,133 2) - - (1,153 9)
Financial habilities - debt 1ssued under the Euro
Medwm Term Note Programme - fixed
interest rote 542 {112 5) {224 9) {725 1) (2,080 2} (3,142 7)
Financial habibties - bonk overdrafts and
short-term borrowings 150 (450) - - - (45 0)
Financiel labilities - redeemable preference
shares - fixed interest rate (*) 700 o7 {14) {14) {11 3) {14 8)
Trade and other payables - non-mterest bearing - (132 1) - - - (132 1)
Total 3110 1,359 5) (726 5) {2,091 5) (4,488 5)

(*) The preference shares are classified os a fingncial bability in accordance with the contractual obiigation to deliver cash {both dwvidends end repayment of
principal) to the shareholders on winding up, os stated in the Memorandum and Articles of Assoagtion of the Company

Company
2012
Weighted 2012 2012
average 2012 Between 1-3 Between 3-5 2012 2012
interest rate Under 1 year yedars years QOver 5 years Total
% £m £m £m £m £m
Finonciol lwbtities - bank loans - vanable
Interest rate 183 90) {512 0} - - (5210}
Financial igbilities - debt issued under the Euro
Medium Term Note Programme - fixed
nterest rate 502 (142 4) (284 8) (758 9} (2,903 9) (4,090 0}
Financial iabilities - bank cverdrafts and
short-term borrowings - - - - - -
Financial labilities - redeemable preference
shares - fixed interest rate {*) 700 (07) (14) {14) (11 3) {14 8}
Trade and other paycbles - non-interest bearing - (103 3) - - - (103 3}
Total (255 4) (798 2) {760 3) (2,915 2) {4,729 1}

(*} The preference shares of the Company are classified as a financiel licbility In accordance with the contractuol obligation to deliver cash (both dvidends ond
repayment of principol) to the shareholders an winding up as stated tn the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company

Company
2011
Weighted 2011 2011
average 2011 Between 1-3 Between 3-5 2011 2011
interest rote Under 1 year years years Over 5 years Total
Em fm £m £m fm
Financial labilities - bank loans - vaniabte
Interest rate 155 (17 ) 1,133 1) - - (1,350 3)
Financial labilities - debt 1ssued under Euro
Medium Term Note Programme - fixed
interest rate 542 (1125) (224 3} {7251) (2,080 2) (3,142 7}
Financiol labilizies - bank overdrafts end
short-term borrowings - - - - - -
Financial labilittes -~ redeemable preference
shares - fixed interest rate (*) 700 0" (14) (14) (113 {14 8}
Trade and other payables - non-interest bearing - (42 6) - - - (42 6)
Total (1730 (1,359 4) (726 5) (2,091 5) {4,350 4)

{*) The preference shares of the Company are classified as a financial iability in accordance with the contractual obligation to deliver cash {both dwvidends and
repayment of pnngipal) to the shereholders on winding up as stated in the Memorandum and Arttcles of Association of the Company
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33 Funding and financial nsk management conhinued

Liquidity nsk management continued

The following tables detall the contractual maturity of the Group and the Company’s interest rate and cross-currency swap liabilities The cosh

flows are settled on a net basis

The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted amounts of the financial lobilities based on the earliest dates on which the Group
and the Company can be required to discharge those Labiltes

Group
2012
Weighted 2012 2012
avergge 2012 Between 1-3 Between 3-5 2012 2012
interest rate Under 1 year years years Over 5 years Total
% £m Em £m Em £m
Interest rate swaps 073 (06) - - - {06}
Cross-currency swaps 3194 (18 2} (107) (10 3} (23 2) (62 4)
Group
201
Weighted 2011 2011
average 2011 Between 1-3 Between3 5 2011 20m
Interest rate Under 1 year years years Over S years Total
% £m £m fm £m £m
Interest rate swaps 218 o - - - (72}
Cross-currency swaps 424 (92 (3 4) (33) 87 (72}
Company
2012
weighted 2012 2012
average 2012 Between 1-3 Between 3-5 2012 2012
interest rate Under 1 year years yeors Over 5 years Total
% £m £m £m £m £m
[nterest rote swaps 073 {0 6) - - - (06)
Cross-currency swaps 394 (18 2} (107) (10 3) {23 2) (62 4)
Company
2011
Weighted 2011 2011
average 2011 Between 1-3 Between 3 5 2¢11 2011
Interest rate Under 1 year yecrs years Over 5 years Total
% £m £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps 218 (7 2) - - - (72)
Cross-currency swaps 424 (92) (34 (33) §7 {(72)
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33 Funding and financial nsk management continued

Liqudity sk management continued

The following tables detait the Group and the Company’s expected matunty for ts non-derivative financiol assets The tables below have been
drawn up based cn the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including the interest that will be earned on those assets
except where the Group and the Company anticipate that the cash flow will occur In a different period Apart from hire purchase receivabies
the non-derivative financral assets are anticipated to mature within gne year The matunty of the hire purchase recevables 1s matched by the

term borrowings

Group
2012
Waighted 2012 2012
averoge 2012 Between 1-3 Between 3-5 2012 2012
Interest rate Under 1 year years years Over 5 years Total
% £m £m £m £m £m
Hire purchase receivables - fixed interest rate 94 188 209 37 01 435
Trade and other receivables -
nan-interest bearing - 2189 135 - - 2324
Caosh and bank balances - non-interest beoring - 1025 - - - 1025
Total 3402 34 4 37 Q1 378 4
Group
2011
Weighted 2011 2011
average 7011 Between 1-3 Between 3-5 611 2011
interest rate Under 1 year years years Over 5 years Total
% £m £m £m £m £m
Hire purchase recevables - fixed interest rate 101 274 359 95 01 729
Trade and other recewvables -
non-interest bearing - 605 - - - 60 5
Cash and hank balancas - non-interest bearng - 337 - - - 337
Total 1216 359 95 01 1671
Company
2012
Weighted 2012 2012
average 2012 Between 1-3 Between 3-5 2012 2012
interest rate Under 1 year years years Over b years Total
% £m £m £m £m £m
Loans to other Group companies 493 1729 3416 3281 36329 44755
Company
2011
Weighted 2011 2011
average 2011 Between 1-3 Between 3-5 2011 201
interest rate Under 1 year years years Over 5 yeors Total
% £m £m £m £m £m
Loans to other Group companies 486 1598 3117 3158 34927 4,2800
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